
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Date: Sep 07 2023 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (Orange Park High Raider Band, Brett Pikuritz, Band Director)

Invocation (Pastor Lucas Johnson, Campus Pastor, Christ's Church)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. School Celebrations for 2023 Assessments

Presenters

2. Florida Safe School Assessment Findings

School Showcase (Orange Park High School, Principal Ivin Gunder)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

3. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop and Special Meeting on July 25, 2023; Special Meeting on August 1, 2023;
Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on August 3, 2023

2023 Aug 1 Special Mtg.pdf

2023 Jul 25 Workshop.pdf

2023 Jul 25 Special Mtg.pdf

2023 Aug 3 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2023 Aug 3 Regular Meeting.pdf

School Board Attorney

4. C2 - Approval to Advertise and Set the Public Hearing to Approve Revisions to School Board Policy 1.15 (Parental
Rights, Notification and Student Welfare)

Legal Adv Revisions to SB Policy 1.15 Parental Rights.pdf

Section 1.15 proposed changes.pdf

Human Resources

Page 1 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52454
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52445
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52442
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52442
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-aug-1-special-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-jul-25-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-jul-25-special-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-aug-3-regular-meeting.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52492
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52492
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-revisions-to-sb-policy-115-parental-rights.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/section-115-proposed-changes_1.pdf


5. C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 9.7.2023.pdf

6. C4 - Kelly Services Staffing Contract Amendment #3 for Contract Extension

Instruction-Academic Services

7. C5 - Amendment One to Dual Enrollment Agreement between Gaetz Aerospace Inst, Embry-Riddle Aeronautical Univ.
(ERAU) and School Board of Clay County (SBCC) 2022-2025

240028 Embry-Riddle Amendment One.pdf

8. C6 - Amendment to Santa Fe Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement

240023 Santa Fe College 2nd Amendment.pdf

9. C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

September 2023 Board Backup.pdf

Instruction-Career and Technical Education

10. C8 - 2023-2024 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement between CCSD and St. Johns County School Board on
behalf of First Coast Technical College

FCTC-CCSD AA.pdf

Contract Review 2023-24 Dual Enrollment Agreement Between CCSD and First Coast Technical College.pdf

11. C9 - Approve School Affiliation Agreement between HCA South Atlantic Division (parent corporation of Orange
Park Medical Center) and The School Board of Clay County, Florida, Department of Career and Technical Education

HCA School Affiliation Agreement .pdf

Instruction-Professional Development

12. C10 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Liberty University (LU)

The School Board of Clay County FL AA (LU signed).pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

13. C11 -  7 Mindsets Life Skills and Character Education

240041 7 Mindsets Academy, LLC.pdf

14. C12 - 2023-2024 School Health Services Agreement with Department of Health Clay

240031 Clay County Health Department - School Health Service Agreement.pdf

IN-SEDNET

15. C13 - Ratify 240032 Lutheran Services Florida (LSF Health Systems) - Amendment 112

240032 Lutheran Services Florida (LSF Health Systems) - Amendment 112 (1).pdf

Business Affairs

16. C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

09.07.23 - 23-24 Allocation Summary  .pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

Page 2 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52449
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-972023.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52487
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52479
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52479
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240028-embry-riddle-amendment-one.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52480
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240023-santa-fe-college-2nd-amendment.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52478
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/september-2023-board-backup.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52435
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52435
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/fctc-ccsd-aa.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contract-review-2023-24-dual-enrollment-agreement-between-ccsd-and-first-coast-technical-college.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52481
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52481
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/hca-school-affiliation-agreement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52434
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/the-school-board-of-clay-county-fl-aa-lu-signed.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52451
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240041-7-mindsets-academy-llc.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52444
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240031-clay-county-health-department-school-health-service-agreement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52448
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240032-lutheran-services-florida-lsf-health-systems-amendment-112-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52453
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/090723-23-24-allocation-summary.pdf


17. C15 - Superintendent's Annual Financial Report and Annual Cost Report for the FYE 6-30-2023

18. C16 - Budget Amendment Report for June 2023

Business Affairs-Property

19. C17 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT AUGUST, 2023

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT SEPTEMBER, 2023.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

20. C18 - BID to be Awarded

Operations

21. C19 - Florida Safe Schools Assessment Acceptance Letter

Safe School Assessment Certification Letter 9.7.23.pdf

Operations-Facilities

22. C20 - Purchase Agreement for Two (2) Sets of Ramps and Stairs at Keystone Heights Elementary School

Purchase Agreement KHE Ramps & Stairs 9.7.23.pdf

23. C21 - Change Order #7 for Orange Park High School Stadium Repair/Replacement

OPH Stadium Repair.Replacement CO 7.pdf

24. C22 - Substantial Completion of Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations

OPJ Restroom Renovations Substantial Completion.pdf

25. C23 - Change Order #3 for Middleburg High School Cafeteria Expansion

MHS Cafeteria Expansion CO 3.pdf

26. C24 - Substantial and Final Completion of Clay High School Restroom Renovations

CHS Restroom Renovations Substantial and Final Completion.pdf

27. C25 - Lake Asbury Junior High School HVAC Repair/Replacement Contract Award

LAJ HVAC Repair.Replacement Contract 9.7.23.pdf

28. C26 - Change Order #1 for Plantation Oaks Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement

Change Order #1 for Plantation Oaks Elementary School Roof Repair Replacement.pdf

29. C27 - Orange Park Junior High School Roof Repair/Replacement Contract Award

Backup Information - Orange Park Junior High School Roof Repair Replacement.pdf

30. C28 - Substantial Completion of Wilkinson Elementary School Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations

Certificate of Substantial Completion - WES Kitchen Cafeteria Renovations.pdf

31. C29 - Substantial Completion of Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 -
Shingles & Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations

Certificate of Substantial Completion - RVE Roof Repair Replacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 - Shingles & Kitchen
Cafeteria Renovations.pdf

Page 3 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52489
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52488
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52446
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-september-2023.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52473
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52486
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/safe-school-assessment-certification-letter-9723.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52452
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/purchase-agreement-khe-ramps-stairs-9723.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52455
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-stadium-repairreplacement-co-7.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52456
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/opj-restroom-renovations-substantial-completion.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52457
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mhs-cafeteria-expansion-co-3.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52458
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/chs-restroom-renovations-substantial-and-final-completion.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52460
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/laj-hvac-repairreplacement-contract-9723.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52461
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-for-plantation-oaks-elementary-school-roof-repair-replacement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52462
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-orange-park-junior-high-school-roof-repair-replacement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52463
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-completion-wes-kitchen-cafeteria-renovations.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52464
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52464
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-completion-rve-roof-repair-replacement-buildings-1-2-3-shingles-kitchen-cafeteria-renovations.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-completion-rve-roof-repair-replacement-buildings-1-2-3-shingles-kitchen-cafeteria-renovations.pdf


32. C30 - Final Completion of Plantation Oaks Elementary School Reroof

Certificate of Final Completion - POE Reroof.pdf

33. C31 - Change Order #1 for Green Cove Junior High School Window/HVAC Replacement Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4

Change Order for #1 GCJ Window HVAC Replacement Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4.pdf

34. C32 - Change Order #1 for Bannerman Learning Center Parking Lot Renovations/Security Lighting Replacement

Change Order #1 for BLC Parking Lot Renovations Security Lighting Replacement.pdf

35. C33 - Change Order #3 for Keystone Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms

Change Order #3 KHE New Cafeteria Classrooms.pdf

36. C34 - Change Order #4 (Direct Purchasing) for Spring Park Elementary School

Change Order #4 (Direct Purchasing) for Spring Park Elementary School.pdf

37. C35 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 9.7.23.pdf

38. C36 - Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Orange Park High School

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - OPH.pdf

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - OPH Cont..pdf

39. C37 - Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Oakleaf High School

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - OHS.pdf

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - OHS Cont..pdf

40. C38 - Change Order #3 (Direct Purchasing) for Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1,
2, & 3 - Shingles & Kitchen Cafeteria Renovations

Change Order #3 (Direct Purchasing) RVE Roof RepairReplacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 - Shingles & Kitchen
Cafeteria Renovations.pdf

41. C39 - Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement between the Clay County School Board and Clay County, FL related to
the County Road 315 Right of Way Improvements and Signalization

Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with BCC for CR 315 Improvements 9.7.23.pdf

42. C40 - County-Wide Architect Contract Award – Acquisition Notice/Re-Assignment

County Wide Architectural Services Contract Amendment - LS3P Associates LTD.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

43. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Page 4 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52465
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-final-completion-poe-reroof.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52466
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-for-1-gcj-window-hvac-replacement-buildings-1-2-3-4.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52467
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-for-blc-parking-lot-renovations-security-lighting-replacement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52468
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-3-khe-new-cafeteria-classrooms.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52469
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-4-direct-purchasing-for-spring-park-elementary-school.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52474
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-9723_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52475
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-for-safety-security-emergency-communications-contract-award-oph.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-for-safety-security-emergency-communications-contract-award-oph-cont.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52476
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-for-safety-security-emergency-communications-contract-award-ohs.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-for-safety-security-emergency-communications-contract-award-ohs-cont.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52477
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52477
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-3-direct-purchasing-rve-roof-repairreplacement-buildings-1-2-3-shingles-kitchen-cafeteria-renovations.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-3-direct-purchasing-rve-roof-repairreplacement-buildings-1-2-3-shingles-kitchen-cafeteria-renovations.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52459
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52459
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/amendment-to-interlocal-agreement-with-bcc-for-cr-315-improvements-9723.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52490
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/county-wide-architectural-services-contract-amendment-ls3p-associates-ltd.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52471


44. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

45. D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

46. D4 - Human Resources Special Action D

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 5 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52470
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52472
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52491


School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
School Celebrations for 2023 Assessments

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
Florida Safe School Assessment Findings

Description
Clay County District Schools, Safety and Security team must present their Florida Safe Schools Assessment findings and
recommendations to the District School Superintendent and the District School Board which identify strategies and activities that
the District School Board should implement in order to address the findings and improve school safety and security.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The Safety & Security Department has previously presented non-specific findings at a school board meeting.

Expected Outcomes
During a School Board Meeting on August 29, 2023 (closed to the public), Stephen Mills, Safety & Security Supervisor, will
present findings from the Florida Safe School Assessments to the school board members.
During a Regular School Board Meeting on September 7, 2023, Stephen Mills, Safety & Security Supervisor, will present to the
public and board members a broad overview of the assessment findings.  No specifics will be disclosed during the public
meeting.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Presentation only.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Stephen Mills, Supervisor of Safety and Security, 904-336-6846, stephen.mills@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 7 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop and Special Meeting on July 25, 2023; Special Meeting on August 1, 2023; Student
Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on August 3, 2023

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2023 Aug 1 Special Mtg.pdf

2023 Jul 25 Workshop.pdf

2023 Jul 25 Special Mtg.pdf

2023 Aug 3 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2023 Aug 3 Regular Meeting.pdf

Page 8 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-aug-1-special-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-jul-25-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-jul-25-special-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-aug-3-regular-meeting.pdf


Date: Aug 01 2023 (5:05 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

August 1, 2023 - Special Meeting (Public Hearing on the 2023-2024 Tentative Budget)

Invocation  (Ashley Gilhousen)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper (participating via telephonic conferencing), District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2; Beth Clark, District

3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley Gilhousen, District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Agenda Items

1. Review the 2023-2024 Proposed Millage, Rolled-Back Rate Calculation, and the 2023-2024 Tentative Budget (All Funds)

2023-2024 Budget Summary Tentative Budget.pdf

Tentative Budget Presentation.pdf

Minutes:

Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business A�airs, provided the attached visual presentation of the 2023-2024

budget that included the proposed millages, roll-back rate calculation, and proposed revenues and expenditures for all funds. 

The total millage to be levied is more than the roll-back rate by 12.10% so the district will be required to advertise a tax

increase.  The unassigned General Fund balance on June 30, 2023 is estimated at 4.53%, with an estimated 4.71% on June 30,

2024.  The district's total tentative budget (all funds) for the �scal year 2023-2024 is $589,848,650.  The �nal public hearing to

adopt the �nal millage and the budget for 2023-2024 will be held on September 14, 2023.

2. Public Hearing for Comments on the 2023-2024 Budget and Millages

Minutes:

Chair Gilhousen opened the public hearing.  With no one coming forward to speak, the public hearing was closed.

3. Adopt the 2023-2024 Required Local E�ort Millage Levy

Motion

That the Clay County School Board adopt the 2023-2024 �nal proposed required local e�ort mill levy of 3.156 with a proposed

amount to be raised of $60,520,294. The RLE millage includes basic RLE of 3.151 and a prior period adjustment millage of

.005.

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye
Page 9 of 589

DRAFT



Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

4. Adopt the 2023-2024 Basic Discretionary Operating Millage Levy

Motion

That the Clay County School Board adopt the 2023-2024 �nal proposed base discretionary millage of .748 with a proposed

amount to be raised of $14,343,847

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Beth Clark

Second: Michele Hanson

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

5. Adopt the 2023-2024 Local Capital Improvement Fund Millage Levy

Motion

That the Clay County School Board adopt the 2023-2024 �nal proposed capital outlay millage of 1.500 with a proposed

amount to be raised of $28,764,398

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Michele Hanson

Second: Mary Bolla

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

6. Adopt the 2023-2024 Additional Voted Operating Millage Levy

Motion

That the Clay County School Board adopt the 2023-2024 �nal proposed voted millage of 1.00 with a proposed amount to be

raised of $19,176,265

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

7. Adopt the 2023-2024 Total Millage Levy

Motion Page 10 of 589

DRAFT



That the Clay County School Board adopt the 2023-2024 �nal proposed total millage will equal 6.404 with a total amount to

be raised of $122,804,804. The total millage rate to be levied is more than the roll-back rate by 12.10 percent.

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Beth Clark

Second: Michele Hanson

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

8. Adopt the 2023-2024 Tentative Budget (All Funds) and set the Public Hearing for the 2023-2024 Final Budget Thursday,

September 14, 2023 at 5:05 p.m.

Motion

That the Clay County School Board adopt the tentative budget for the 2023-2024 school year as follows: Generating Operating

in the amount of $419,281,591; Special Revenue Budget in the amount of $64,053,342; Debt Service Budget in the amount of

$7,119,154; Capital Outlay Budget in the amount of $99,394,563, for a total Final Budget of $589,848,650. The Public Hearing

to adopt the 2023-2024 Final Budget will be held on Thursday, September 14, 2023.

Minutes

Mrs. Hanson moved approval and Mrs. Bolla seconded. Chair Gilhousen requested and received clari�cation from Mr. Bickner

that the motion should also include wording indicating that the Public Hearing to adopt the Final Budget will be held on

Thursday, September 14, 2023 at 5:05 p.m. Mrs. Hanson subsequently revised her motion and Mrs. Bolla seconded.

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Michele Hanson

Second: Mary Bolla

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

9. Resolution 24-01 Determining 2023-2024 Tentative Millages

Resolution 24-01.pdf

Motion

Approve Resolution #24-01 determining the 2023-2024 Tentative Revenues and Millages levied for �scal year 2023-2024.

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

10. Resolution 24-02 Adopting the 2023-2024 Tentative Budget

Page 11 of 589

DRAFT



Resolution 24-02.pdf

Motion

That the Clay County School Board approve Resolution #24-02 adopting the Tentative 2023-2024 Budget

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Beth Clark

Second: Michele Hanson

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

11. Approve Tentative 2023/24 – 2027/28 Educational Facilities Plan

EFP 2023-2028 TENTATIVE 7.17.23 - pdf.pdf

_EFP Growth Presentation August 2023.pptx (1).pdf

Tentative EFP Presentation Capital Rev Sources - 8-1-2023.pdf

Minutes:

Representatives from the Operations Department provided the attached visual presentations.  Bryce Ellis, Assistant

Superintendent of Operations advised here department collaborated with the Technology Department and the plan, for the

�rst time, also re�ects technology initiatives.  This is a tentative plan that may be revised as needed.

Lance Addison, Coordinator of Facilities & Planning, reviewed the attached visual presentation, highlighting current growth,

enrollment, and student data trends, as well as the areas of growth in Clay County and projected school needs.

Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facilities Planning and Construction, reviewed the attached visual presentation,

discussing capital revenue sources, projected revenue across funding sources, district capital outlay expenditures, the

Educational Facilities Plan (EFP) process, planned projects, and completed projects.  Dr. Kemp noted the challenge of signi�cant

growth in combination with the sequential increase in the cost of construction materials and supplies and expressed the need

to leverage funds to obtain the biggest impact for growth.  The pandemic continues to impact the cost of construction, supply,

demand, and material with construction costs more than doubling and no additional funding provided to o�set the increased

cost of construction.

Motion

Motion to Approve Tentative 2023/24 - 2027/28 Educational Facilities Plan

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

Presentations from the Audience  (None)

Superintendent Comments

Page 12 of 589

DRAFT



12. Superintendent Comments

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie expressed excitement for the return of teachers and students to schools.

School Board Attorney Comments  (None)

School Board Comments  (None)

Adjournment  (6:57 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 13 of 589

DRAFT



Date: Jul 25 2023 (10:00 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, corner of Walnut Street & Gratio Place, Green Cove Springs

July 25, 2023 - School Board Workshop

Invocation  (Ashley Gilhousen)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley

Gilhousen, District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie. This meeting was called to order at 12:25 p.m.)

Workshop Items

1. Review Draft Agenda for Regular School Board Meeting on August 3, 2023

August-3-2023-regular-school-board-meeting_agenda_packet (1).pdf

Minutes:

Recognitions:

Recognize National Winners of Career and Technical Student Organization - no discussion;

Consent Agenda:

C1 Minutes of School Board Workshop and Special Meeting on June 20, 2023; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular

Meeting on June 29, 2023 - no discussion;

C2 Lightspeed Systems - no discussion;

C3 Personnel Consent Agenda - no discussion;

C4 2023-24 Early College Program (formerly Collegiate High School) Contract Between the School Board of Clay County

and District Board of Trustees of St. Johns River State College - no discussion;

C5 K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel - no discussion;

C6 2023-2024 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement Between School Board of Clay County and Florida State College of

Jacksonville - no discussion;

C7 Proposed Revision to Pace Employee and Student Calendar for 2023-2024 School Year - no discussion;

C8 Approval of the Curriculum Associates agreement for the purchase of i-Ready Mathematics K-5 and Ellevation

Platform for the 2023-2024 School Year - no discussion;

C9 Approval for the Purchase of Achieve3000 blended Literacy Solution for the 2023-2024 - Mrs.Hanson noted concerns

with the cost and e�ectiveness of this supplemental resource based on her personal experience and that of her

colleagues, indicating that this curriculum is being used in such a way that it can have an adverse e�ect on students'

grades, does not align with standards, takes away from the quality classroom instruction identi�ed on the current

strategic plan, and is an unvetted and potential duplicate resource; Superintendent Broskie advised that this is a

supplementary curriculum and that it could be improved by implementing more professional learning with less reliance

on technology, but he does not want to pull a support away from a teacher without consideration of the timing of that

change;

C10 2023-2024 Professional Development Advisory Council Membership - no discussion;

C11 Resident Clinical Faculty Memorandum of Understanding between Clay County District Schools and the University of

North Florida - no discussion;

C12 A�liation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Liberty University (LU) - no discussion;

Page 14 of 589

DRAFT



C13 Navigate 360, LLC curriculum to meet requirements set forth under Rule 6A-1.094124, F.A.C.) - no discussion;

C14 2023-2024 Clay County School Board Agreement with Flagler Health for BRAVE Program - no discussion;

C15 Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024 - no discussion;

C16 Deletion of Certain Items Report July, 2023 - no discussion;

C17 BID to be Awarded - no discussion;

C18 Prequali�cation of Contractors - no discussion;

C19 School Concurrency Proportionate Share Mitigation (PSM) Development Agreement for Holstein Commercial, LLC, a

Florida limited liability company (Bella Lago SFA) - no discussion;

C20 Clay High School Gym Renovations Contract Award - no discussion;

C21 Substantial Completion of Spring Park Elementary School - no discussion;

C22 Change Order #2 for Middleburg High School Cafeteria Expansion - no discussion;

C23 Change Order #2 for Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 - Shingles and

Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations - no discussion;

C24 Fleming Island High School Replace Batting Practice Building and Erosion Control Contract Award - no discussion;

C25 Change Order #1 for Middleburg High School Safety & Security Single Key Access Initiative - no discussion;

C26 Change Order #1 for Keystone Heights High School Safety & Security Single Key Access Initiative - no discussion;

C27 Change Order #2 for Wilkinson Elementary School Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations (Freezer/Cooler

Replacement/Ceilings) - no discussion;

C28 Change Order #1 for Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations - no discussion;

C29 Change Order #1 for Lakeside Junior high School Restroom Renovations - no discussion;

C30 Architect Contract Award - Classroom Addition Prototype for Oakleaf Junior High School, Lake Asbury Junior High

School and Future Reuse - no discussion;

Discussion Agenda:

D1 Human Resources Special Action A - no discussion;

D2 Human Resources Special Action B - no discussion;

D3 Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Modi�cations to the 2022-2023 Student Progression Plan - no discussion;

D4 Public Hearing, as Advertised, for 95 Acre Land Purchase Located at 2770 Russell Road - no discussion;

2. Update for the 2023 - 2024 School Year

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie noted sta�ng success in the transportation department and mentioned the challenges that are

typically experienced during the �rst week of school.  Board members were invited to attend events at Spring Park Elementary

(8:30), Clay High (9:30), and Green Cove Springs Jr. High (10:40) on the �rst day of school. 

3. Middleburg High School Gym Dedication (Information Only)

Minutes:

In accordance with SB Policy 6.00 L 4 (d), the Middleburg High Gymnasium is being dedicated in honor of Carrie Prewitt, a

retired 38-year educator and volleyball coach at Middleburg High.

Questions from the Audience  (None)

Superintendent Comments  (None)

School Board Attorney Comments  (None)

School Board Comments

4. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Hanson would like the �nancial information to be transparent and easy enough for the average person to understand. 

She feels all could bene�t from some additional time each month to address questions from constituents and obtain

Page 15 of 589

DRAFT



explanations, in layman's terms, to assist in communicating with the public.  Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of

Business A�airs, will provide additional clarity on �nancial issues at workshops beginning in October, 2023.

Mrs. Gilhousen noted she was approached by several sta� members who requested the board receive additional information

on the current services being provided through the Clay County District Schools Police Department.  There will be an

informational presentation provided on CCDSPD at the August workshop.

Mrs. Bolla noted upcoming dates, times, and locations for Tools4Schools event opportunities for teachers to obtain needed

classroom supplies.

Mrs. Clark requested an update on the achievements of the Southern Group.  Superintendent Broskie advised CCDS was

granted two of its three requests, receiving an expansion of Elevation Academy at Bannerman Learning Center and an

expansion of Career and Technical Education programs for Fleming Island High with the addition of a CNA program and

partnership with Baptist, a combined value of approximately $600,000.

Adjournment  (1:01 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 16 of 589

DRAFT



Date: Jul 25 2023 (9:00 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Corner of Walnut Street & Gratio Place, Green Cove Springs, FL

July 25, 2023 Special Meeting

Invocation  (Beth Clark)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley

Gilhousen, District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Agenda Items

1. 2023-2024 Mental Health Assistance Allocation Plan

Clay 23-24 MHAAP Submitted to Board 7.25.23.pdf

Minutes:

Mrs. Hanson would like parents to receive communication delineating what videos are being shown and when they are being

shown to students so that parents can make informed choices.  Mrs. Gilhousen noted that, if there already exists a schedule of

the videos, the schedule can be shared with parents so they can make individual choices and follow up with any desired

discussion with their children.  Superintendent Broskie indicated that advertising for these videos can be increased and that

Laura Fogarty, Supervisor of Climate and Culture, is available to discuss any concerns with parents.

Motion

Motion to Approve 2023-2024 Mental Health Assistance Allocation Plan

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

2. Updated and Amended 2023-2024 School Safety Interlocal Agreement among the School Board of Clay County, Florida; City of

Green Cove Springs Florida; and Green Cove Springs Police Department

230141 City of GCS PD Interlocal AMENDED.pdf

Minutes:

Page 17 of 589

DRAFT



Mrs. Skipper asked if Clay County Sheri�'s O�ce was asked about this contract and Superintendent Broskie advised they were

not because it would not be proper to do so.

Motion

Motion to Approve Updated and Amended 2023-2024 School Safety Interlocal Agreement among the School Board of Clay

County, Florida; City of Green Cove Springs Florida; and Green Cove Springs Police Department

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

3. Approve Contract for Legal Services between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the Douglas Law Firm

DOUGLAS CONTRACT FOR LEGAL SERVICES LH formatted (1) (2) (3).pdf

Motion

Motion to Approve Contract for Legal Services between the School Board of Clay County, Florida and the Douglas Law Firm

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Michele Hanson

Second: Mary Bolla

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

4. Review 2023-2024 Tentative Budget for all Funds

Tentative Budget Presentation.pdf

Minutes:

Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business A�airs, presented the tentative budget for the 2023-2024 �scal year

and explained how the roll-back rate is calculated (copy of presentation attached to agenda item).  She reported that the total

millage rate to be levied exceeds the rollback rate by 12.10%, so the district will be required to advertise a tax increase.  The

�rst public hearing on the millage rates and the tentative budget will be on August 1, 2023.  The proposed annual budget for all

funds for the 2023-2024 school year is $589,848,650.  The unassigned general Fund balance on June 30, 2023 is estimated at

4.53%, with an estimated 4.71% on June 30, 2024.

Mrs. Hanson noted that the advertised tax increase is a result of the increased values of properties.  Mrs. Clark stated that the

Save Our Homes amendment limits the annual increase in the assessed value of properties to 3% per year.  Mrs. Gilhousen

mentioned that the Required Local E�ort is not optional.

5. Review Tentative 2023/24 – 2027/28 Educational Facilities Plan

EFP 2023-2028 TENTATIVE 7.17.23 - pdf.pdf

Minutes:

Page 18 of 589

DRAFT



Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, indicated that the Educational Facilities Plan documentation is attached to

the agenda, and the EFP will be presented in full at the upcoming special meeting on August 1, 2023.

6. Approve Advertisement for the 2023-2024 Tentative Budget and Millages

2023-2024 Budget Summary- Budget AD.pdf

NOTICE OF TAX FOR SCHOOL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2023.pdf

NOTICE OF PROPOSED TAX INCREASE 2023.pdf

Motion

Approve Advertisement for the 2023-2024 Tentative Budget and Millages

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Michele Hanson

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

Presentations from the Audience

7. Public Comment

Minutes:

Public speakers:

Ronnie Pittman 

Tom Flacco 

Superintendent Comments  (None)

School Board Attorney Comments  (None)

School Board Comments

8. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Clark urged calm as we progress through the exploration of safety and security services, indicating that care will be taken

not to make uninformed conclusions.  She extended thanks to the Clay County District Schools police o�cers.

Mrs. Hanson appreciated the candid conversation and advised no decision will be made in haste without signi�cant research. 

She believes good units do simple things well and that simple things build rapport and help communications go forward and

that breakdown starts when there is a failure to do simple things well.

Mrs. Skipper stated that misinformation has been going around and that no one wants to make the CCDSPD o�cers jobless. 

Her campaign experiences made her aware of her constituents' wishes, and she has also spoken to several administrators and

teachers who support her move to transfer the safety and security of students to the Clay County Sheri�'s O�ce.  She

reiterated her desire to have a discussion with Sheri� Cook present at a meeting to respond to questions.  She encouraged

individuals with questions to ask her directly with their concerns.  

Mrs. Bolla advised she was immediately approached by community members with concerns following the June 29, 2023 board

meeting.  She read a letter written to Mrs. Skipper outlining her concerns re bringing an item before the board that had not

been researched, properly vetted, nor on the agenda.  She stated the necessity of each board member having the right to be
Page 19 of 589

DRAFT



educated on what will come before the board to include the necessary backup necessary to make a fully informed vote.  She

expressed concern for the safety of students and appreciation for the CCDSPD o�cers and urged Mrs. Skipper to engage the

board as a team.

Superintendent Broskie expressed his willingness to engage with the board on more topics if desired.  He commented on

misinformation and urged the board members to bring concerns to him so that he can engage the personnel that participate

and do the work, in order to ensure board members have the entirety of the information on matters.  He advised that Sheri�

Cook has requested and received additional information and is working to determine capacity, cost, and additional

analysis that will enable the board to compare and contrast with the current services.  

Charles Douglas, Jr., school board attorney as of 8/1/2023, commented that he looks forward to joining the team.

Adjournment  (12:04 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 20 of 589

DRAFT



Date: Aug 03 2023 (6:00 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island

August 3, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Student Showcase  (None)

Invocation  (Rev. Sarah Minton, St. Mary's Episcopal Church, Green Cove Springs)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper (participated via telephonic conferencing), District 1: Mary Bolla, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3;

Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley Gilhousen, District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Recognitions and Awards  (None)

1. Recognize National Winners of Career and Technical Student Organization

August 2023 CTSO School Board Recognition.pdf

Minutes:

Kelly Mosley, Supervisor of Career and Technical Education, recognized national winners of Career and Technical Student

Organization as follows:

TSA-LAJ - Marka Behnken - National Middle School Advisor of the Year

TSA-LAJ - Jayna Lauer - 1st Place National Career Prep

TSA-LAJ - Chandani Armogan, Jayna Lauer, Greyson Tompkins - 5th Place Inventions and Innovations

TSA-LAJ - Bobby Baggett, Timothy McKeehan, and Greyson Tompkins - 6th Place System Control

FBLA-LAJ - Shawn Saint-Vilus - 1st Place FBLA Mission and Pledge

Presenters  (None)

School Showcase  (None)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

2. Public Comment

Minutes:

Public speakers:

Judith Chapple

Constance Higginbotham 

Dawn Hall 

Christie Torode 

Carol Newbern 

Kelly Stoudnour 

Tom Doan 
Page 21 of 589

DRAFT



Leigh Ann Lunsford 

Tanya Kacsan 

Bruce Friedman 

Samantha Wernet 

Shari McGri� 

Sheila Torres

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

3. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop and Special Meeting on June 20, 2023; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular

Meeting on June 29, 2023

2023 Jun 20 Workshop.pdf

2023 Jun 20 Special Mtg.pdf

2023 Jun 29 Student Hearings.pdf (Con�dential)

22 Jun 29 Regular Mtg.pdf

Information Technology Services

4. C2 - Lightspeed Systems

230180 Lightspeed Systems.pdf

Executed 230180 Lightspeed.pdf

Human Resources

5. C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

August 4.2023 Personnel Consent Agenda-Updated.pdf

6. C4 - Kelly Services Amendments - Substitutes

Kelly Services - Exhibit A 7.25 (1).pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

7. C5 - 2023-24 Early College Program (formerly Collegiate High School) Contract Between the School Board of Clay County and

District Board of Trustees of St. Johns River State College

230161 St Johns River Collegiate HS.pdf

8. C6 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

OHS Field Trip 3-7-24_001.pdf

9. C7 - 2023-2024 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement Between School Board of Clay County and Florida State College of

Jacksonville

230170 FSCJ.pdf

Executed 230170 FSCJ.pdf

10. C8 - Proposed revision to PACE Employee and Student Calendar for 2023-2024 School Year

23-24 PACE Employee and Student Calendar Revised.pdf

11. C9 - Approval of the Curriculum Associates agreement for the purchase of i-Ready Mathematics K-5 and Ellevation Platform

for the 2023-2024 School Year

230158 Curriculum Assoc Ellevation and iReady_August Board.pdf

Page 22 of 589

DRAFT



Executed 230158 Curriculum Assoc Ellevation_iReady.pdf

Instruction-Professional Development

12. C11 - 2023-2024 Professional Development Advisory Council Membership

2023-2024 PDAC Committee Board Approval.pdf

13. C12 - Resident Clinical Faculty Memorandum of Understanding between Clay County District Schools and the University of

North Florida

230183 UNF Resident Clinical Faculty MOU (1).pdf

14. C13 - A�liation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Liberty University (LU)

Instruction-Climate and Culture

15. C14 - Navigate 360, LLC curriculum to meet requirements set forth under Rule 6A-1.094124, F.A.C.)

230173 Navigate 360.pdf

Executed 230173 Navigate 360.pdf

16. C15 - 2023-2024 Clay County School Board Agreement with Flagler Health for BRAVE Program

240021 Flagler Hospital Brave Program.pdf

Executed 240021 Flagler Hospital Brave Program.pdf

Business A�airs

17. C16 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

23-24 Allocation Summary 08.03.23.xlsx - 2023-24.pdf

Business A�airs-Property

18. C17 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT JULY, 2023

Business A�airs-Purchasing

19. C18 - BID to be Awarded

Operations-Facilities

20. C19 - Prequali�cation of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 8.3.23

21. C20 - School Concurrency Proportionate Share Mitigation (PSM) Development Agreement for Holstein Commercial, LLC, a

Florida limited liability company (Bella Lago SFA).

School Mitigation Agreement Modi�ed-Bella Lago Town Homes 7.18.23.pdf

22. C21 - Clay High School Gym Renovations Contract Award

Clay High School Gym Renovations Bid Tab.pdf

Clay High School Gym Renovations Contract.pdf

23. C22 - Substantial Completion of Spring Park Elementary School

Substantial Completion for Spring Park Elementary School

24. C23 - Change Order #2 for Middleburg High School Cafeteria Expansion

MHS Cafeteria Expansion CO #2.pdf

Page 23 of 589

DRAFT



25. C24 - Change Order #2 for Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 – Shingles and

Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations

Change Order #2 RVE Roof Repair Replacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 - Shingles and Kitchen Renovations

26. C25 - Fleming Island High School Replace Batting Practice Building and Erosion Control Contract Award

FIeming Island High School Batting Practice Bldg. & Erosion Control Bid Tab.pdf

FIH Replace Batting Practice Building.Erosion Control Contract Award.pdf

27. C26 - Change Order #1 for Middleburg High School Safety & Security Single Key Access Initiative

MHS Single Safety & Security Key Access CO #1.pdf

28. C27 - Change Order #1 for Keystone Heights High School Safety & Security Single Key Access Initiative

KHH Safety & Security Single Key Access CO #1.pdf

29. C28 - Change Order #2 for Wilkinson Elementary School Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations (Freezer/Cooler

Replacement/Ceilings)

Change Order #2 WES Kitchen Cafeteria Renovations (Freezer Cooler Replacement Ceilings)

30. C29 - Change Order #1 for Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations

OPJ Restroom Renovations Change Order #1.pdf

31. C30 - Change Order #1 for Lakeside Junior High School Restroom Renovations

LJH Restroom Rnovations CO #1.pdf

32. C31 - Architect Contract Award - Classroom Addition Prototype for Oakleaf Junior High School, Lake Asbury Junior High

School and Future Reuse

Architect Contract for Classroom Addition - Oakleaf Junior

Architect Contract for Classroom Addition - Lake Asbury Junior

Agreement - Oakleaf Jr. High Classroom Addition.pdf

Agreement - Lake Asbury Jr. High Classroom Addition prototype.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

33. Adoption of Consent Agenda

Motion

Motion to Adopt Consent Agenda

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (None)

Page 24 of 589

DRAFT



Superintendent's Update and Presentations

34. Superintendent's Update

Superintendent's Update 8-3-2023.pdf

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie noted, in relation to a public speaker's comment, that discipline data is available within Synergy but is

not re�ected on the state website due to program compatibility issues with Synergy.  Mr. Broskie is in agreement that

purchasing processes, engagement, and screen time are all things that should be considered in the purchase of materials.

The attached visual presentation was shared, highlighting the following:

State Assessment Results

New School Year

Student Transportation

Food and Nutrition Services

Immunization Requirements

Upcoming Events

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

35. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action A.

36. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Minutes:

There was no Human Resources Special Action B.

Instruction-Academic Services

37. D3 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Modi�cations to the 2022-2023 Student Progression Plan

Approval to Advertise Notice of PH Student Progression Plan.pdf

Student Progression Plan 2023 - 2024-Board DRAFT .pdf

Summary of Changes - 23-24 SPP.pdf

Minutes:

Chair Gilhousen opened the public hearing.  With no one coming forward to speak to the item, the public hearing was closed.

Motion

Motion to Approve as Advertised Modi�cations to the 2022-2023 Student Progression Plan

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Michele Hanson

Second: Mary Bolla

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Page 25 of 589

DRAFT



Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

38. C10 - Approval for the Purchase of Achieve3000 Blended Literacy Solution for 2023-2024 (pulled by Mrs. Hanson)

230157 Achieve 3000 (1).pdf

Minutes:

Mrs. Hanson stated that she pulled this item to discussion in order to achieve �scal responsibility and better educate students

and that she has previously cited valid reasons why Achieve3000 does not bene�t students, including negative emotional and

academic impacts on students and a need for proper implementation.  As this resource is used only three to four times per

month, she would like curriculum coaches and specialists to develop supplementary material and use that time for a writing

component that would focus on essay skills, obtaining input from teachers, sta� members, and parents for alternate

purchase(s) should this item not be approved.  She would also appreciate more time to research and evaluate like purchases.

Mrs. Bolla believes this item is research-based and has been vetted, from her perspective, by teachers and professionals within

curriculum instruction.  She advised this is a tool that provides the ability to di�erentiate instruction for use with all students,

enabling collaborative learning among all academic levels.  She indicated she is not comfortable saying no to this program

because she knows it is used appropriately to help students.  She does support having options to consider in the future.

Mrs. Clark expressed concern regarding extended screen time for students and would like to have more input from teachers

about other options.

Mrs. Skipper believes there is too much technology and less engagement for students.  She would like students to take a step

back from technology/screen time and encourages additional support sta� so teachers can engage in small group instruction.

Mrs. Gilhousen appreciates the sca�olding of instruction that allows classroom discussion at low and high levels, but she is not

personally a fan of screens.  She proposed the possibility of a county database of articles that could be printed and distributed

as a resource for teachers.  She indicated that a majority of board members are concerned with the screen time issue and it

may be bene�cial to have a discussion at workshop and place the item on next month's agenda in order to allow time to hear a

more prescriptive direction from the instructional division and correct any inappropriate use.

Mr. Broskie indicated he understands the board's concern re screen time and can provide protocols and talk about each

program and the frequency for that at a future workshop.

Board members considered postponing the item to receive additional information, but a subsequent vote was taken.

Motion

Motion to Approve the Purchase of Achieve3000 Blended Literacy Solution for 2023-2024

Vote Results ( Rejected )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Nay

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Nay

Michele Hanson - Nay

Erin Skipper - Nay

Operations-Facilities

39. D4 - Public Hearing, As Advertised, for 95 Acre Land Purchase Located at 2770 Russell Road

Minutes:

Chair Gilhousen opened the public hearing.  With no one coming forward to speak to the item, the public hearing was closed.

Page 26 of 589

DRAFT



School Board Attorney Remarks

40. School Board Attorney Remarks

Minutes:

School Board Attorney, Jeremiah Blocker (Douglas Law Firm), indicated that he looks forward to working with each of the board

members and will be scheduling 1:1 interviews with each of them.

School Board Member Remarks

41. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Hanson attended a Clay Education Foundation event and enjoyed watching teachers accessing needed supplies.  She

requested to be apprised of current litigation matters involving the district.

Mrs. Clark expressed support for Mrs. Skipper's contribution of ideas and regrets how Mrs. Skipper and Mr. Douglas

were treated at the last board workshop, citing the manner as unprofessional.  She is aware that the district and the Clay

County Sheri�'s O�ce are currently exchanging information and suggested 90 days as a discover and discussion period, with

multiple workshops as needed, to be able to make an informed vote at the November 2nd meeting.

Mrs. Skipper also would like information that can be lawfully provided to board members re litigation.  She would like to review

the parental rights policy with new counsel to ensure it is aligned with the law and determine if it can be made better.  She took

part in innovative training for transportation sta� and appreciates the positive environment in that department.  She

appreciates the speakers attending this meeting and indicated she will continue to hold herself accountable to those who

elected her to speak on their behalf.

Mrs. Bolla also participated in the transportation training and Tools4Schools event.  She appreciates the beautiful campus of

the newest school, Spring Park Elementary.  She also indicated Joe Wiggins is again willing to participate as the citizen member

on Value Adjustment Board.

Mrs. Gilhousen advised the new security changes at the meeting were not initiated by her, but she was informed the security is

in alignment with other local agencies.  She obtained a board consensus to revisit policy prior to considering book challenge

appeals, with Mr. Dailey, Mr. Blocker, and possibly stakeholders to see if there can be agreement on a set of appropriate

standards for books.  She extended wishes to families for the best school year yet.

Adjournment  (8:32 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 27 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Approval to Advertise and Set the Public Hearing to Approve Revisions to School Board Policy 1.15 (Parental Rights,
Notification and Student Welfare)

Description
Current Parental Rights policy has been revised and updated to bring in accordance with Florida Legislative changes from this
legislative session. These proposed revisions and updates will bring current policy into conformity with Florida law.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow the School Board to advertise the proposed adoption and public hearing of the proposed rule
which will then lead to the consideration of passage of the Rule by the School Board after the appropriate public hearing.  The
Policy/Rule will be advertised, submitted to the public for comment and to the Board for public hearing and consideration in the
manner contemplated by the Administrative Procedures Act.

Strategic Plan Goal
Provide FAPE to all students of the free public schools operated by the School Board of Clay County, Florida in compliance with
the requirements of the Florida legislature.

Recommendation
The School Board Attorney and Legal Department recommends: (1) approval to advertise and set the public hearing on the
proposed changes to this certain policy and (2) approval of these revisions and updates to conform with current Florida Law
governing parental rights and notification in education.

Contact
Jeremiah Blocker, Esq., School Board Attorney
John Steinmetz, Esq., Assistant School Board Attorney

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Legal Adv Revisions to SB Policy 1.15 Parental Rights.pdf

Section 1.15 proposed changes.pdf

Page 28 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-revisions-to-sb-policy-115-parental-rights.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/section-115-proposed-changes_1.pdf


 Approval  to  Advertise:  The  School  Board  of  Clay  County,  Florida  (“the  Board”)  approves  the  advertisement  of 
 revisions to School Board Policy 1.15 (Parental Rights, Notification and Student Welfare Policy). 

 Purpose  &  Effect:  The  proposed  amendments  are  intended  to  simplify,  update,  and  ensure  alignment  of 
 School  Board  Policies  with  state  law,  federal  law,  State  Board  of  Education  Rules,  and  other  applicable  rules 
 and regulations. 

 Access  to  Text  of  Proposed  Amendments:  The  full  text  of  the  proposed  revisions  to  SB  Policy  1.15  is 
 available  for  inspection  and  copying  by  the  public  in  the  Office  of  the  Superintendent  for  Clay  County  District 
 Schools,  located  at  900  Walnut  Street,  Green  Cove  Springs,  Florida  32043.  The  full  text  is  also  available  via 
 the  School  District’s  website  at  www.oneclay.net  under  the  School  Board  Meeting  Links,  School  Board 
 Agendas  -  September  7,  2023.  The  Superintendent  is  authorized  to  correct  technical  errors  in  grammar, 
 numbering,  section  designations,  and  cross-references  as  may  be  necessary  to  reflect  the  intention  of  such 
 Policy amendments. 

 Rule  Making  Authority:  The  Board  is  authorized  to  adopt  revisions  to  School  Board  Policy  1.15  (Parental 
 Rights,  Notification  and  Student  Welfare  Policy)  under  sections  120.54,  1001.31,  and  1001.32  of  the  Florida 
 Statutes. 

 Laws  Implemented:  The  laws  implemented  by  the  above-referenced  policy  revisions  are  noted  under  each 
 section of the Policy. 

 Person(s)  Originating  Policy  Changes:  The  proposed  policy  was  originated  by  the  Superintendent  and  his 
 designee(s) in collaboration with the School Board Attorney. 

 Public  Hearing:  The  Board  intends  to  formally  adopt  proposed  revisions  to  School  Board  Policy  1.15  following 
 a  public  hearing.  The  public  hearing  shall  be  held  on  Thursday,  November  2,  2023,  during  the  course  of 
 the  Board’s  regular  meeting,  which  begins  at  6:00  p.m.  and  takes  place  in  the  Boardroom  at  the  Teacher 
 In-service Training Center at Fleming Island High School, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Orange Park, Florida. 

 Any  person  requiring  special  accommodations  to  attend  or  participate  in  public  meetings  should  advise  the 
 School  District  at  least  48  hours  before  the  meeting  by  contacting  the  Superintendent’s  Office  at  (904) 
 336-6508  .  If  you  are  hearing  or  speech  impaired,  you  may  contact  the  District  by  email  addressed  to 
 bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net  or by calling  (904) 336-6584  (TDD). 

 If  a  person  decides  to  appeal  any  decision  made  by  the  Board  with  respect  to  any  matter  considered  at  the 
 meeting,  he  or  she  will  need  a  record  of  the  proceedings,  and,  for  such  purpose,  he  or  she  may  need  to  ensure 
 that  a  verbatim  record  of  the  proceedings  is  made,  which  record  includes  the  testimony  and  evidence  upon 
 which the appeal is to be based. 

Page 29 of 589

DRAFT



1.15 PARENTAL RIGHTS, NOTIFICATION, AND STUDENT WELFARE 
 

 

A. As required by Florida Statutes 1002.20, 1042(8), and 1014.01 
through 1014.06, the Board adopts this policy titled, Parental Rights and Student 
Welfare. 

 
B. A. All parental rights are reserved to the parent of a minor child in 

this state without obstruction or interference from the School Board or any of its 
agents, employees, or volunteers. Such parental rights are enumerated in Florida 
Statutes 1002.20, 1042(8), and 1014.04 1014.01 through 1014.06. Those parental 
rights listed in 1014.04 1014.01 through 1014.06 include, but are not limited to, all 
of the following rights of a parent of a minor child enrolled as a student in Clay 
District Schools: 
 
 
 

child. 
1. The right to direct the education and care of his or her minor 

 

2. The right to direct the upbringing and the moral or religious 
training of his or her minor child. 

 

 

3. The right, pursuant to s. 1002.20(2)(b) and (6), to apply to enroll 
his or her minor child in a public school or, as an alternative to public education, a 
private school, including a religious school, a home education program, or other 
available options, as authorized by law. 

 

 

4. The right, pursuant to s. 1002.20(13), to access and review all 
school records relating to his or her minor child. 

 

 

5. The right to make health care decisions for his or her minor child, 
unless otherwise prohibited by law. 

 

 

6. The right to access and review all medical records of his or her 
minor child, unless prohibited by law or if the parent is the subject of an investigation 
of a crime committed against the minor child and a law enforcement agency or 
official requests that the information not be released. 

 

 

7. The right to consent in writing before a biometric scan of his or 
her minor child is made, shared, or stored. 

 

 

8. The right to consent in writing before any record of his or her 
minor child’s blood or deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA) is created, stored, or shared, 
except as required by general law or authorized pursuant to a court order. 

 

  Page 30 of 589

DRAFT



 

9. The right to consent in writing before the state or any of its 
political subdivisions makes a video or voice recording of his or her minor 
child unless such recording is made during or as part of a court proceeding or is 
made as part of a forensic interview in a criminal or Department of Children and 
Families investigation or is to be used solely for the following purposes: 

 

 

(a) A safety demonstration, including the maintenance of 
order and discipline in the common areas of a school or on student transportation 
vehicles; 

 

 

(b) A purpose related to a legitimate academic or 
extracurricular activity; 

 

 

(c) A purpose related to regular classroom instructions; 
 

 

(d) Security or surveillance of buildings or grounds; or 
 

 

(e) A photo identification card. 
 

 

10. The right to be notified promptly if an employee of the state, any 
of its political subdivisions, any other governmental entity, or any other institution 
suspects that a criminal offense has been committed against his or her minor child, 
unless the incident has first been reported to law enforcement or the Department of 
Children and Families and notifying the parent would impede the investigation. 

 

 

C. B. The parental rights listed in F.S.1001.42(8)(c)1 through 
1001.42(8)(c)7 as set forth in Laws of Florida 2022-22 include, but are not 
limited to, all of the following rights of a parent of a minor child enrolled as a 
student in Clay District Schools: 

 
 
 

1. School District personnel shall notify a student’s parent if there 
is a change in the student’s services or monitoring related to the student’s 
mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the school’s ability to 
provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student. 

 

 

2. School District personnel are required to encourage a student to 
discuss issues relating to his or her well-being with his or her parent or to facilitate 
discussion of the issue with the parent. 

 

 

3. School district personnel may not discourage or prohibit parental 
notification of and involvement in critical decisions affecting a student’s mental, Page 31 of 589

DRAFT



emotional, or physical health or well-being. 

Page 32 of 589

DRAFT



 

4. School District Policies, Procedures and Student support forms 
may not prohibit school district personnel from notifying a parent about his or her 
student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being, or a change in related 
services or monitoring, or that encourage or have the effect of encouraging a student 
to withhold from a parent such information. 

 

 

5. The Superintendent of Schools, by and through his designated 
administrators, shall draft procedures to implement the forgoing policies (1 through 
4) by reinforcing the fundamental rights of parents to make decisions regarding the 
up-bringing and control of their children. 

 

 

6. Nothing contained in this policy or any procedures drafted to 
implement this policy shall prohibit School District personnel from adopting 
procedures that permit school personnel to withhold such information from a parent 
if a reasonably prudent person would believe that disclosure would result in abuse, 
abandonment, or neglect, as those terms are defined in s. 39.01 Florida Statutes. 

 

 

7. Nothing contained in this policy or any procedures drafted to 
implement this policy shall prohibit, or be construed to prohibit, parents from 
accessing any of their student’s education and health records created, maintained, or 
used by the school district, as required by s. 1002.22(2). 

 

 

8. Classroom instruction by school personnel or third parties on 
sexual orientation or gender identity may not occur in kindergarten through grade 3 
or in a manner that is not age-appropriate or developmentally appropriate for 
students in accordance with state standards. 

 

 

9. Student support services training developed or provided by a 
school district to school district personnel must adhere to student services guidelines, 
standards, and frameworks established by the Department of Education. 

 

 

10. At the beginning of the school year, the school district shall 
notify parents of each healthcare service offered at their student’s school and the 
option to withhold consent or decline any specific service. Parental consent to a 
health care service does not waive the parent’s right to access his or her student’s 
educational or health records or to be notified about a change in his or her student’s 
services or monitoring as provided by this paragraph. 

Page 33 of 589

DRAFT



11.  Before administering  a  student  well-being  questionnaire  or 
health screening form to a student in kindergarten through grade 3, the school district 
must provide the questionnaire or health screening form to the parent and obtain the 
permission of the parent to proceed with the administration of the questioning. 

 

 

12. The Superintendent of Schools, or his designee, shall adopt 
procedures for a parent to notify the principal, or his or her designee, regarding 
concerns about the implementation of any part of this entire Policy or its associated 
procedures at his or her student’s school and the process for resolving those concerns 
within 7 calendar days after notification by the parent. 

 

 

a. At a minimum, the procedures must require that within 30 days 
after notification by the parent that the concern remains unresolved, the school 
district must either resolve the concern or provide a statement of the reasons for not 
resolving the concern. 
 
 
 

either: 
b. If a concern is not resolved by the school district, a parent may 

 

(1) Request the Commissioner of Education to appoint a 
special magistrate who is a member of The Florida Bar in good standing and who 
has at least 5 years’ experience in administrative law. 

 

 

The special magistrate shall determine facts relating to the 
dispute over the school district policy or procedure/practice, consider information 
provided by the school district, and render a recommended decision for resolution 
to the State Board of Education within 30 days after receipt of the request by the 
parent. 

 

 

The State Board of Education must approve or reject the 
recommended decision at its next regularly scheduled meeting that is more than 7 
calendar days and no more than 30 days after the date the recommended decision is 
transmitted. 
 
 
 

school district. 
The costs of the special magistrate shall be borne by the 

 

(2) Bring a legal action against the School Board of Clay 
County, Florida to obtain a declaratory judgment that the school district 
procedure/practice violates this Policy and seek injunctive relief. 

Page 34 of 589

DRAFT



The court may award damages and shall award reasonable 
attorney fees and court costs to a parent who receives declaratory or injunctive relief. 

 
c. Each school district shall adopt policies to notify parents of the 

procedures required under this subparagraph.  
 

 

d. Nothing contained in this subparagraph shall be construed to 
abridge or alter rights of action or remedies in equity already existing under the 
common law or general law. 

 

 

D. At a minimum, the Superintendent is directed to provide notice 
directly to parents of students enrolled in the District of the substantive content of 
this policy at least annually at the beginning of the school year, and within a 
reasonable period of time after any substantive change in this policy. 

E. C. As used in this policy, the term “Parent” shall be defined to 
include a natural or adopted parent, step-parent, legal guardian, state agency 
appointed as a child’s guardian or any other individual or entity designated by 
applicable law as “the parent”. means a person who has legal custody of a minor 
child, as a natural or adoptive parent, or a legal guardian. 

 

 

F. Nothing contained in this Policy or in procedures drafted to implement 
this Policy, shall require any School District personnel to inform a parent of 
communications between a student and school personnel if it is determined: 

 

 

1. That the student, after being encouraged to discuss issues relating 
to his or her well-being with his or her parent or to facilitate discussion of the issue 
with the parent, indicates an unwillingness or outright refusal to enter into discussion 
with his/her parents concerning those matters about which the student communicated 
with School District personnel, and 

 

 

2. That there is no change in the student’s services or monitoring 
related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the 
school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the 
student, or 

 

 

3. Information has been disclosed to the School District personnel 
by the student or other individual(s) which would cause a reasonably prudent person 
to believe that disclosure of the communicated information to a parent would result 
in abuse, abandonment, or neglect, as those terms are defined in s. 39.01 Florida 
Statutes. 

Page 35 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda 9.7.2023.pdf

Page 36 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-972023.pdf


Page 37 of 589

DRAFT



Page 38 of 589

DRAFT



Page 39 of 589

DRAFT



Page 40 of 589

DRAFT



Page 41 of 589

DRAFT



Page 42 of 589

DRAFT



Page 43 of 589

DRAFT



Page 44 of 589

DRAFT



Page 45 of 589

DRAFT



Page 46 of 589

DRAFT



Page 47 of 589

DRAFT



Page 48 of 589

DRAFT



Page 49 of 589

DRAFT



Page 50 of 589

DRAFT



Page 51 of 589

DRAFT



Page 52 of 589

DRAFT



Page 53 of 589

DRAFT



Page 54 of 589

DRAFT



Page 55 of 589

DRAFT



Page 56 of 589

DRAFT



Page 57 of 589

DRAFT



Page 58 of 589

DRAFT



Page 59 of 589

DRAFT



Page 60 of 589

DRAFT



Page 61 of 589

DRAFT



Page 62 of 589

DRAFT



Page 63 of 589

DRAFT



Page 64 of 589

DRAFT



Page 65 of 589

DRAFT



Page 66 of 589

DRAFT



Page 67 of 589

DRAFT



Page 68 of 589

DRAFT



Page 69 of 589

DRAFT



Page 70 of 589

DRAFT



Page 71 of 589

DRAFT



Page 72 of 589

DRAFT



Page 73 of 589

DRAFT



Page 74 of 589

DRAFT



Page 75 of 589

DRAFT



Page 76 of 589

DRAFT



Page 77 of 589

DRAFT



Page 78 of 589

DRAFT



Page 79 of 589

DRAFT



Page 80 of 589

DRAFT



Page 81 of 589

DRAFT



Page 82 of 589

DRAFT



Page 83 of 589

DRAFT



Page 84 of 589

DRAFT



Page 85 of 589

DRAFT



Page 86 of 589

DRAFT



Page 87 of 589

DRAFT



Page 88 of 589

DRAFT



Page 89 of 589

DRAFT



Page 90 of 589

DRAFT



Page 91 of 589

DRAFT



Page 92 of 589

DRAFT



Page 93 of 589

DRAFT



Page 94 of 589

DRAFT



Page 95 of 589

DRAFT



Page 96 of 589

DRAFT



Page 97 of 589

DRAFT



Page 98 of 589

DRAFT



Page 99 of 589

DRAFT



Page 100 of 589

DRAFT



Page 101 of 589

DRAFT



Page 102 of 589

DRAFT



Page 103 of 589

DRAFT



Page 104 of 589

DRAFT



Page 105 of 589

DRAFT



Page 106 of 589

DRAFT



Page 107 of 589

DRAFT



Page 108 of 589

DRAFT



Page 109 of 589

DRAFT



Page 110 of 589

DRAFT



Page 111 of 589

DRAFT



Page 112 of 589

DRAFT



Page 113 of 589

DRAFT



Page 114 of 589

DRAFT



Page 115 of 589

DRAFT



Page 116 of 589

DRAFT



Page 117 of 589

DRAFT



Page 118 of 589

DRAFT



Page 119 of 589

DRAFT



Page 120 of 589

DRAFT



Page 121 of 589

DRAFT



Page 122 of 589

DRAFT



Page 123 of 589

DRAFT



Page 124 of 589

DRAFT



Page 125 of 589

DRAFT



Page 126 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Kelly Services Staffing Contract Amendment #3 for Contract Extension

Description
The Contract between Kelly Services and the School Board of Clay County is set to expire on October 14, 2023.  This
Amendment # 3 shall change the expiraction date to June 30, 2024, under the same current terms and conditions.  This extension
provides the necessary time to complete and advertise the RPF.  The contract has an exit clause that can be enacted by either
party with a written thirty (30) day notice.
 

Gap Analysis
As the provider of staffing services, Kelly Services shall be the employer of Assigned Employees and shall be responsible for the
staffing services listed: recruit, interview, select, and hire Assigned Employees; place Assigned Employees according to SDCC
requirements; pay Assigned Employees their wages and provide them the benefits that Kelly Services offers to them as Kelly
Services Employees; pay insurance premiums (e.g. Medicare), withhold payroll taxes (e.g. FICA) and fulfill its obligations for
unemployment compensation; provide workers compensation benefits; and maintain Assigned Employees personnel and payroll
records related to their employment by Kelly Services.  

Previous Outcomes
The Agreement was Board approved August 2, 2018 and has been used successfully to provide quality substitutes to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect Kelly Services to continue providing quality substitutes.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and
conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the amendment to the original Kelly Services Contract, which adds additional funding for substitute services for the
District.

Contact
Brenda Troutman, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources; brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net; 904.336.6701

Financial Impact
All funding necessary for the Educational Staffing fees are budgeted within the General Budget.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 127 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Amendment One to Dual Enrollment Agreement between Gaetz Aerospace Inst, Embry-Riddle Aeronautical Univ. (ERAU)
and School Board of Clay County (SBCC) 2022-2025

Description
An amendment to the collaborative agreement between ERAU and SBCC for dual enrollment purposes that reflects an overall
budget increase. The amendment allows for the continuation of a relationship between the two organizations at the following
schools: Fleming Island High School, Keytone Heights Jr - Sr High School, Middleburg High School, Oakleaf High School and
Orange Park High School. This agreement allows Clay County students to enroll in college courses on the campuses of each high
school listed. 

Gap Analysis
This amendment must be made in order to continue offering this to Clay County students. 

Previous Outcomes
Clay County has had a positive working relationship with Embry-Riddle Aeronautical University and amendment to
the agreement benefits the students of the District by allowing both college credits and high school credits at the same time.
Additionally, this program is unique to the Clay County programs in that the aeronautical these is highlighted. 

Expected Outcomes
Clay County Aerospace students continue to take advantage of the Dual Enrollment program and earn college level credits. It is
expected that the total number of students in this program will continue to grow.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1:Engage all students to attain the necessary skills and knowledge to be future-ready graduates.       
Strategy 1.3: Graduate students who are ready to enroll, enlist, or be employed in the workforce.

Recommendation
That the School Board of Clay County School approve Amendment One to Dual Enrollment Agreement between Gaetz
Aerospace Inst., ERAU and SBCC Academic years 2022 - 2025

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary, 904-336-6918, treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Approximately $35,328.00 - 100.5100730.9007.0000

Review Comments

Attachments

240028 Embry-Riddle Amendment One.pdf

Page 128 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240028-embry-riddle-amendment-one.pdf


Page 129 of 589

DRAFT



Page 130 of 589

DRAFT



Page 131 of 589

DRAFT



Page 132 of 589

DRAFT



Page 133 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Amendment to Santa Fe Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement

Description
A collaborative agreement between Santa Fe College and SBCC for Dual Enrollment purposes.  This amendment to the
longstanding agreement that will allow 10th graders at Keystone Heights Junior/Senior High School to participate in two Dual
Enrollment courses. The agreement outlines policies pertaining to Dual Enrollment and the roles and responsibilities of each
organization. Students may qualify in the fall of 10th grade to take one course, SLS1101, with a 3.0 cumulative unweighted GPA
based upon at least 6 full high school credits, college-level scores on the CPT, PERT, SAT, or ACT in at least one area, a
recommendation from a school faculty member, and the demonstration of the student’s maturity required to ensure success in a
college class in a college environment.  If students receive a B or higher in the SLS1101 course, students may qualify to take one
additional class, suggested by the School Board and approved by the College, in the spring of 10th grade.  Successfully earning a
B or higher in the spring term will allow the student to continue in the program under the conditions of the Agreement.

Gap Analysis
This amendment removes the requirement for advance written approval from St. Johns River State College as set out in
Paragraph 2.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County has had a positive working relationship with Santa Fe and this agreement benefits the students of the district by
allowing them to earn both college credits and high school credits.  

Expected Outcomes
Students participating in Dual Enrollment coursework at Keystone Heights Junior/Senior High School will be able to work
towards their Associate of Arts degree at a more reasonable rate by taking Dual Enrollment beginning in the 10th grade.  

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Engage all students to attain the necessary skills and knowledge to be future-ready graduates.
Strategy 1.3: Graduate students who are ready to enroll, enlist or be employed in the workforce.

Recommendation
Approval of the amendment to Dual Enrollment articulation agreement between Santa Fe College and School Board of Clay
County.

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary, 904.336.6918, treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
115,000.00 (based on enrollment 22/23)

Review Comments

Attachments

240023 Santa Fe College 2nd Amendment.pdf

Page 134 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240023-santa-fe-college-2nd-amendment.pdf


Page 135 of 589

DRAFT



Page 136 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Page 137 of 589

DRAFT



Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose
Lakeside Junior
High

4/20/24 Valdosta, GA
Chorus and
Band

Student perfomance at Wild Adventures Theme Park

Oakleaf Junior
High

1/30 -
2/3/24

Washington,
DC and
Virginia

Pre-AICE
Students

Reinforce USH1 Concepts and Standards

Oakleaf Junior
High

12/8 -
12/9/23

Haines City,
FL

FFA FFA Conference

Oakleaf Junior
HIgh

9/16 -
9/17/23

Kissimmee,
FL

FFA Chapter President Conference

Fleming Island
High

10/6/23 Guyton, GA NJROTC Varsity Air Rifle team event

Fleming Island
High

11/4/23 Cairo, GA NJROTC Air Rifle Meet

Fleming Island
High

9/30/23
Brunswick,
GA

NJROTC Orienteering Team Event

Fleming Island
High

9/8 -
9/10/23

Camp
Blanding

NJROTC Orienteering Training Camp

Fleming Island
High

9/16/23 Cairo, GA NJROTC Drone and Cairo Triathlon Challenge

Fleming Island
High

1/26 -
1/27/24

Oxford, AL NJROTC Area 12 Air Rifle championship

Fleming Island
High

9/1 - 9/2/23
Lakewood
Ranch, FL

Boys Golf
Team

Team Building

Fleming Island
High

9/29 -
9/30/23

Orlando, FL
Boys Golf
Team

Team Building

Middleburg High 9/30/23 Bruswick, GA NJROTC Orienteering Team competition

Middleburg High
9/8 -
9/10/23

Camp
Blanding

NJROTC Orienteering Team training

Middleburg High
11/3 -
11/4/23

South
Effingham,
GA

NJROTC Drill Team competition

Middleburg High
12/8 -
12/9/23

Appling, GA NJROTC Orienteering Team competition

Middleburg High 3/1 - 3/2/24
Coffee
County, GA

NJROTC Drill Team activity/competition

Middleburg High
11/10 -
11/12/23

St.
Petersburg,
FL

Marching
Band

Florida Marching Band State Championship

Middleburg High
12/9 -
12/10/23

Haines City,
FL

FFA
Officers/me
mbers

FFA Leadership Conference

Ridgeview High
9/8 -
9/10/23

Camp
Blanding

NJROTC Orienteering Team Training

Ridgeview High 9/30/23 Brunswick, NJROTC Orienteering Team Meet

Page 138 of 589

DRAFT



GA
Ridgeview High 9/16/23 Cairo, GA NJROTC Cairo Triathlon Challenge

 

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer K12; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

September 2023 Board Backup.pdf

Page 139 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/september-2023-board-backup.pdf


Page 140 of 589

DRAFT



Page 141 of 589

DRAFT



Page 142 of 589

DRAFT



Page 143 of 589

DRAFT



Page 144 of 589

DRAFT



Page 145 of 589

DRAFT



Page 146 of 589

DRAFT



Page 147 of 589

DRAFT



Page 148 of 589

DRAFT



Page 149 of 589

DRAFT



Page 150 of 589

DRAFT



Page 151 of 589

DRAFT



Page 152 of 589

DRAFT



Page 153 of 589

DRAFT



Page 154 of 589

DRAFT



Page 155 of 589

DRAFT



Page 156 of 589

DRAFT



Page 157 of 589

DRAFT



Page 158 of 589

DRAFT



Page 159 of 589

DRAFT



Page 160 of 589

DRAFT



Page 161 of 589

DRAFT



Page 162 of 589

DRAFT



Page 163 of 589

DRAFT



Page 164 of 589

DRAFT



Page 165 of 589

DRAFT



Page 166 of 589

DRAFT



Page 167 of 589

DRAFT



Page 168 of 589

DRAFT



Page 169 of 589

DRAFT



Page 170 of 589

DRAFT



Page 171 of 589

DRAFT



Page 172 of 589

DRAFT



Page 173 of 589

DRAFT



Page 174 of 589

DRAFT



Page 175 of 589

DRAFT



Page 176 of 589

DRAFT



Page 177 of 589

DRAFT



Page 178 of 589

DRAFT



Page 179 of 589

DRAFT



Page 180 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C8 - 2023-2024 Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement between CCSD and St. Johns County School Board on behalf of First
Coast Technical College

Description
In a continuing effort to provide opportunities for secondary school students to transition into First Coast Technical College post-
secondary programs, First Coast Technical College will award college credit to eligible students.This agreement will assist
students in earning a degree at an accelerated pace. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
The goal is to increase the number of students who attend post-secondary schools by offering courses which can be articulated
into credits at First Coast Technical College.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1 - Engage all students to attain the necessary skills and knowledge to be future-ready graduates.
Strategy 3:1 - Strengthen career pathway opportunities and coordinate Choice Programs to ensure all students identify,
understand, and prepare for careers aligned to their interests.
 

Recommendation
Approve the Dual Enrollment Articulation Agreement between CCSD and First Coast Technical College.
 
 

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; (904) 336-6904

Financial Impact
$5000 (paid with grant funds - 443-5100730-9002-0000-4816-000-2)

Review Comments

Attachments

FCTC-CCSD AA.pdf

Contract Review 2023-24 Dual Enrollment Agreement Between CCSD and First Coast Technical College.pdf

Page 181 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/fctc-ccsd-aa.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contract-review-2023-24-dual-enrollment-agreement-between-ccsd-and-first-coast-technical-college.pdf


Page 182 of 589

DRAFT



Page 183 of 589

DRAFT



Page 184 of 589

DRAFT



Page 185 of 589

DRAFT



Page 186 of 589

DRAFT



Page 187 of 589

DRAFT



Page 188 of 589

DRAFT



Page 189 of 589

DRAFT



Page 190 of 589

DRAFT



Page 191 of 589

DRAFT



Page 192 of 589

DRAFT



Page 193 of 589

DRAFT



Page 194 of 589

DRAFT



Page 195 of 589

DRAFT



Page 196 of 589

DRAFT



Page 197 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Approve School Affiliation Agreement between HCA South Atlantic Division (parent corporation of Orange Park Medical
Center) and The School Board of Clay County, Florida, Department of Career and Technical Education

Description
The Department of Career and Technical Education, a subpart of the School District of Clay County, Florida, seeks to enter into
an Agreement with HCA South Atlantic Division, the parent corporation of Orange Park Medical Center, for the purpose of
allowing CTE Health Science interns to complete their internship at HCA medical centers, specifically Orange Park Medical
Center, Orange Park, Florida. The attached School Affiliation Agreement sets forth the terms by which that can be accomplished.
The Department of Career and Technical Education, a subpart of the School District of Clay County, Florida, seeks to enter into
an Agreement with HCA South Atlantic Division, the parent corporation of Orange Park Medical Center, for the purpose of
allowing CTE Health Science interns to complete their internship at HCA medical centers, specifically Orange Park Medical
Center, Orange Park, Florida. The attached School Affiliation Agreement sets forth the terms by which that can be accomplished.
 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Approval of this item will allow the placement of CTE Health Science interns at HCA facilities. (Orange Park Medical Center)

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve the School Affiliation Agreement

Contact
Kelly Mosley, Supervisor of Career and Technical Education, kelly.mosley@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

HCA School Affiliation Agreement .pdf

Page 198 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/hca-school-affiliation-agreement.pdf


1 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

SCHOOL AFFILIATION AGREEMENT 
 

THIS SCHOOL AFFILIATION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made as of 
September 7,  2023 (the “Effective Date”) by and between The School Board of Clay 
County, Florida ("School") and HCA South Atlantic Division ("Hospital”).  School and 
Hospital may be referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the 
“Parties.” 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, School enrolls students in an accredited degree program in the field of 
Health Sciences (the “Degree Program”); (if the School will request students from more 
than one “Degree Program” indicate all applicable programs on Attachment B); 
 

WHEREAS, ‘The Division is authorized to contract on behalf of the hospitals set 
forth on Attachment A, each operates a comprehensive acute-care medical-surgical 
hospital located within the HCA South Atlantic Division Facilities (the “Facility”); 
 

WHEREAS, School desires to provide up to one hundred (100) students per year 
enrolled in the Degree Program a clinical learning experience through the application of 
knowledge and skills in actual patient-centered treatment situations in a health care 
setting; and 
 

WHEREAS, Hospital will make the Facility available to School for such clinical 
learning experience, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the 
Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SCHOOL. 

 
(a) Clinical Program.  School will develop, implement and operate the clinical 

learning experience component of the Degree Program at the Facility in a 
form and format acceptable to Hospital ("Clinical Program").  School may 
modify the Clinical Program from time to time with Hospital’s permission and 
will promptly incorporate reasonable changes to the Clinical Program 
requested by Hospital from time to time.  With respect to the Clinical Program, 
School will: 

(i)  ensure the adequacy of Degree Program resources, including up-to-date 
reference materials, and the academic preparation of students enrolled in 
the Degree Program, including theoretical background, basic skills, 
professional ethics, and attitude and behavior, for participation in the 
Clinical Program and will assign to the Clinical Program only those 
students who have demonstrated the ability to successfully participate in 
the Clinical Program (each a “Participating Student”); 

Page 199 of 589

DRAFT



2 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

(ii)  advise each Program Participant (defined below) to attend training and 
orientation with respect to applicable Hospital policies and procedures 
prior to the commencement of each Clinical Program rotation during the 
Term (each a “Rotation”); 

(iii)  provide training for Hospital’s representatives who will support the Clinical 
Program regarding Clinical Program features and expectations, and 
Participating Student evaluations, as requested by Hospital from time to 
time; 

(iv)  identify to Hospital each Program Participant who will participate in a 
Rotation as soon as that information is reasonably available to School; 

(v)  require Program Participants to comply with applicable laws and Hospital 
policies and procedures when onsite at the Facility; 

(vi)  require Program Participants to treat Hospital patients, staff and Clinical 
Program supervisors with courtesy and respect and do not disrupt Facility 
operations or the provision of health care services for Hospital’s patients; 

(vii)  timely prepare and update with input from Hospital rotation schedules for 
each Participating Student throughout each Rotation and coordinate the 
same with Hospital; 

(viii) require Participating Students to arrive early for each scheduled 
Rotation, except when a Participating Student is ill or attending to a 
personal emergency; 

(ix)  provide continuing oral and written communication with Hospital regarding 
Participating Student Clinical Program performance and evaluation and 
other pertinent information; 

(x)  participate and ensure that Program Participants participate in Hospital's 
Quality Assurance and related programs; 

(xi)  participate and require Program Participants to participate in Hospital 
training as determined necessary by Hospital from time to time; and 

(xii)  promptly perform additional duties to facilitate operation of the Clinical 
Program as may be deemed reasonable or necessary by Hospital from 
time to time. 

(b) Responsibility.  

(i) School will retain ultimate responsibility for the appointment of faculty from 
the Degree Program to support the Clinical Program.  For any faculty or 
preceptor provided or appointed by School who is a physician or 
advanced practice provider that will be on site providing services in 

Page 200 of 589

DRAFT



3 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

connection with the Clinical Program, School shall provide Hospital fully 
signed Exhibit D (form attached hereto).  Further, School represents and 
warrants that it (including its affiliate) will not compensate any such faculty 
for their services provided to School in connection with the Clinical 
Program. 

(ii) School will retain sole responsibility for offering and administering the 
Degree Program, including, but not limited to, budgetary considerations, 
faculty appointments, admissions, financial aid, academic instruction, 
curriculum content, pedagogy, and the requirements of matriculation, 
grading, and graduation.   

(iii) Without limiting the foregoing, all Participating Students, Degree Program 
faculty and other School representatives onsite at the Facility (collectively 
“Program Participants”) shall be accountable to the Hospital's 
Administrator while onsite at the Facility.   

(iv) School will address all Program Participant complaints, claims, requests 
and questions regarding the Clinical Program.  If necessary, School’s 
Program Representative will follow-up with Hospital’s Program 
Representative to address unresolved issues.  

(v) School will obtain prior signed and dated written consent that complies 
with 34 C.F.R. 99.30 from each Participating Student (or the parent of the 
student, if the student is not deemed an “eligible student” under 34 C.F.R. 
99.30) before disclosing personally identifiable information from the 
student’s education records to Hospital to the extent that access to such 
information is required by Hospital to carry out the Clinical Program.  If 
Participating Student notifies School that they revoke said consent, School 
shall immediately notify Hospital and the revocation shall become effective 
immediately upon such notice as applicable to any decisions after that 
date. 

 

(c) Compliance with Program Requirements.  School acknowledges that 
compliance by School and each Program Participant with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and Hospital policies and procedures is a 
condition precedent to Program Participant access to the Facility.  Non-
compliance or partial compliance with any such requirement may result in an 
immediate denial of access or re-access to the Facility. 

(d) Dress Code.  School will cause Program Participants to conform to 
reasonable personal appearance standards imposed by Hospital and wear ID 
badges as requested by Hospital from time to time.  School will cause 
Program Participants to pay for their own meals at the Facility.  School 
acknowledges and will regularly inform Program Participants that Hospital is 

Page 201 of 589

DRAFT



4 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

not responsible for personal items lost or stolen at the Facility. 

(e) Use of the Facility.  School will ensure that Program Participants use the 
Facility solely for the purpose of providing to Participating Students clinical 
learning experience pursuant to the Clinical Program. 

(f) Records.  School will cause each Program Participant to timely complete and 
save in Hospital’s systems as directed by Hospital accurate records of all 
services provided by the Program Participant to a Hospital patient 
("Records").  All Records are and will remain the property of Hospital, subject 
to the rights of patients with respect to such records and to the terms of 
applicable law.  Hospital will provide to School a copy of Records for all lawful 
purposes, including defense of liability claims. 

(g) Program Participants.  School will provide to Hospital information regarding 
each Program Participant, including health examination and immunization 
records, documentation attesting to the competency of Degree Program 
faculty (e.g., state licensure, board certification in the relevant Specialty, etc.) 
and background checks and drug screens as determined reasonably 
necessary in Hospital’s discretion from time to time. 

(h) Program Participant Statements.  School shall require each Program 
Participant to sign a Statement of Responsibility, in the form attached hereto 
as Exhibit A, and a Statement of Confidentiality and Security, in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B prior to each non-consecutive Rotation.   

(i) Liability Insurance.  School shall obtain and maintain occurrence-type 
general and professional liability insurance coverage in amounts not less than 
one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence and three million dollars 
($3,000,000.00) annual aggregate per Program Participant, with insurance 
carriers or self insurance programs approved by Hospital and covering the 
acts and omissions of Program Participants.  If such coverage is provided on 
a claims-made basis, then such insurance shall continue throughout the Term 
and upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement, School shall 
purchase tail coverage for a period of three years after the termination or 
expiration of this Agreement (said tail coverage shall be in amounts and type 
equivalent to the claims-made coverage).  School shall further, at its expense, 
obtain and maintain for the Term workers' compensation insurance and 
unemployment insurance for School-employed Program Participants.  School 
will notify Hospital at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance of any 
cancellation or modification of insurance coverage required hereunder and 
shall promptly provide to Hospital, upon request, certificates of insurance 
evidencing the above coverage. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the School is a public entity entitled to 
governmental immunity protections under applicable state law, then the 
School shall provide occurrence-based liability coverage in accordance with 

Page 202 of 589

DRAFT



5 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

any limitations associated with the applicable law; but the School shall 
provide such insurance with limits of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
$3,000,000 annual aggregate in the event governmental immunity protections 
are determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to not apply.   Nothing in 
this agreement is intended to be construed or interpreted as (1) denying 
either School or Hospital any remedy or defense available to it under state 
laws; (2) the consent of the State where School is located or any of its agents 
and agencies to be sued; or (3) a waiver of sovereign immunity of the State or 
the School beyond any waiver explicitly stated in state statutes. 

(j) Health of Program Participants.  School will advise Program Participants 
that no Program Participant will be permitted to attend the Clinical Program 
until he or she submits to a medical examination acceptable to Hospital.   

School will require each Program Participant to maintain health insurance and 
provide proof of health insurance to the School prior to participating in the 
Clinical Program.  School will cause Program Participants to provide to 
Hospital proof of health insurance as requested by Hospital from time to time.   

In the event a Program Student is exposed to an infectious or environmental 
hazard or other occupational injury while at the Hospital, the Hospital, upon 
notice of such incident from the Participating Student, will provide such 
emergency care as is provided its employees.  School acknowledges that 
Hospital is not and will not be financially responsible for a Program 
Participant's medical care or treatment regardless of the Program 
Participant's condition or injury or cause of injury whether occurring at the 
Facility or otherwise and regardless of fault or cause of injury. 

School will ensure that each Participating Student furnishes to Hospital prior 
to each non-consecutive Rotation a complete copy of the following health 
records (Participating Students will not be allowed to access the Facility until 
all records are provided): 

(i) Tuberculin risk assessment, symptom screening and Interferon-
Gamma Release Assay or Tuberculin Skin Test performed prior to 
the first day of the rotation or documentation as a previous positive 
reactor; 

(ii) Proof of Rubella and Rubeola immunity by positive antibody titers 
or two (2) doses of MMR; 

(iii) Proof of Varicella immunity, by positive history of chickenpox or 
Varicella immunization; 

(iv) Proof of Influenza vaccination during the flu season, October 1 to 
March 31, (or dates defined by CDC). If the Program Participant 
declines the Influenza vaccination, he/she must comply at all times 
with Facility’s Communicable Disease Protection policy; and 

Page 203 of 589

DRAFT



6 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

(v) Proof of Hepatitis B immunization or declination of vaccine, if 
patient contact is anticipated. 

(vi)  Proof of completed vaccination for COVID-19 or exemption for 
religious or medical reasons or as otherwise compliant with 
applicable Hospital policy. 

(k) Performance.  All faculty provided by School to support the Clinical Program 
shall be faculty members of the Degree Program, duly licensed, certified or 
otherwise qualified to support the Clinical Program in the capacity proposed 
by School.  School and all Program Participants shall perform its and their 
duties and services hereunder in accordance with all relevant local, state, and 
federal laws and shall comply with the standards and guidelines of all 
applicable accrediting bodies and the bylaws, rules and regulations of 
Hospital and any non-conflicting rules and regulations of School as may be in 
effect from time to time.  Neither School nor any Program Participant shall 
interfere with or adversely affect the operation of Hospital or the performance 
of services therein. 

(l) Background Checks.   

(i) School will ensure that each Program Participant obtains prior to 
each non-consecutive Rotation a background check acceptable to 
Hospital, including, at a minimum, the following: 

A. Social Security Number Verification; 

B. Criminal Search (7 years or up to 5 criminal searches); 

C. Violent Sex Offender and Predator Registry Search; 

D. HHS/OIG List of Excluded Individuals; 

E. GSA List of Parties Excluded from Federal Programs; 

F. U.S. Treasury, Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC), List of 
Specially Designated Nationals (SDN); and 

G. Applicable State Exclusion List, if available. 

(ii) Background Checks for Program Faculty, if School provides Faculty 
on site, who will be treating patients in the Facility shall include all 
of the above, and the following: 

A. Education verification (highest level); 

B. Professional license verification; 

Page 204 of 589

DRAFT



7 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

C. Certifications & Designations check; 

D. Professional Disciplinary Action search; 

E. Department of Motor Vehicle Driving History, based on 
responsibilities; and 

F. Consumer Credit Report, based on responsibilities. 

(iii) School shall provide to Hospital an Attestation of Satisfactory 
Background Investigation in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C 
prior to each non-consecutive Rotation.  If the background check 
discloses adverse information about a Participating Student, School 
shall immediately remove the student from the Clinical Program.  
School further agrees to an annual compliance audit of background 
checks, if requested by Hospital and approved by any Program 
Participant pursuant to the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA). 

(m)Drug Testing.  School will ensure that each Program Participant obtains prior 
to each non-consecutive Rotation a drug test acceptable to Hospital, 
including, at a minimum, the following: 

(i) Substances tested prior to placement at the Hospital must at a 
minimum include amphetamines, barbiturates, benzodiazepines, 
opiates, methadone, marijuana, and cocaine. 

(ii) A Program Participant may be required to undergo additional drug 
and alcohol testing upon reasonable suspicion that the Program 
Participant has violated Hospital's policies, and after any incident 
that involves injury or property damage. 

Hospital shall not bear the cost of any such tests.  Should the testing disclose 
adverse information as to any Program Participant, Hospital shall have no 
obligation to accept that Program Participant at the Hospital.  To the extent 
that any Program Participant violates the policy for drug or alcohol abuse after 
placement at the Facility, or refuses to cooperate with the requirement for a 
search or reasonable suspicion and reportable accident testing, then the 
Facility may immediately remove the Program Participant from participation in 
the Program at the Facility. 

(n) Student Documentation.  School will maintain all documentation required to 
evidence compliance by each Program Participant with the terms and 
conditions of Subsections 1(g)- (m) of this Agreement during the Term and for 
at least ten (10) years following expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

(o) Access to Resources.  The School shall ensure that its department heads 

Page 205 of 589

DRAFT



8 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

have authority to ensure faculty and Participating Student access to 
appropriate resources for the Participating Students’ education. 

 
(p) Approval and Authorization.  Hospital’s willingness to enter into this 

Agreement and provide clinical opportunities to Participating Students is 
conditioned on School having obtained and maintaining all requisite 
institutional, regulatory, and accreditor approvals or authorizations necessary 
to offer the Degree Program.  Moreover, it is conditioned on School’s 
adherence to all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations.  In 
the event that School’s status changes with respect to any approval or 
authorization necessary to offer the Degree Program, School will notify 
Hospital within ten (10) business days.           

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF HOSPITAL. 

(a) Hospital will make Facility access reasonably available to Program 
Participants and reasonably cooperate with School’s orientation of all 
Program Participants to the Facility.  Hospital shall provide Program 
Participants with access to appropriate clinical experience resources for the 
Clinical Program.  Hospital shall provide reasonable opportunities for 
Participating Students to observe and assist in various aspects of patient care 
to the extent permitted by applicable law and without disruption of patient care 
or Hospital operations.  Hospital shall at all times retain ultimate control of the 
Hospital and responsibility for patient care and quality standards. 

 
(b) Upon the request of School, Hospital shall assist School in the evaluation of 

each Participating Student’s performance in the Clinical Program.  Any such 
evaluations shall be returned to School in a timely manner.  However, School 
shall at all times remain solely responsible for the evaluation and education of 
Participating Students. 

 
(c) Hospital will ensure that the Facility complies with applicable state and federal 

workplace safety laws and regulations.  In the event a Participating Student is 
exposed to an infectious or environmental hazard or other occupational injury 
(i.e., needle stick) while at the Facility, it shall provide, upon notice of such 
incident from the Participating Student, such emergency care as is provided 
its employees, including, where applicable: examination and evaluation by 
Facility’s emergency department or other appropriate facility as soon as 
possible after the injury; emergency medical care immediately following the 
injury as necessary; initiation of the HBV, Hepatitis C (HCV), and/or HIV 
protocol as necessary; and HIV counseling and appropriate testing as 
necessary. In the event that the Facility does not have the resources to 
provide such emergency care, Facility will refer such student to the nearest 
emergency facility. 

 
(d) Upon reasonable request, Hospital will provide proof to School that Hospital 

Page 206 of 589

DRAFT



9 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

maintains liability insurance in an amount that is commercially reasonable. 
 
(e) Hospital will provide written notification to School if a claim arises involving a 

Program Participant. Both Hospital and School agree to share such 
information in a manner that protects such disclosures from discovery to the 
extent possible under applicable federal and state peer review and joint 
defense laws.  

 
(f) Hospital will resolve any situation in favor of its patients' welfare and may 

restrict a Participating Student to the role of observer when necessary in 
Hospital’s discretion.  Hospital will notify School's Program Representative 
(defined below) when such action has occurred. 

(g) Upon reasonable notice from School, Hospital will make the Facility 
reasonably available for inspection during normal business hours by 
organizations that provide or may provide academic accreditation for the 
Degree Program.  Such inspections must be accompanied at all times by a 
Hospital representative and are contingent upon receipt by Hospital of 
executed agreements that Hospital believes are reasonably necessary or 
convenient to protect the confidentiality and security of Hospital’s information.  
School will promptly reimburse Hospital for all direct costs incurred by 
Hospital in connection with such accreditation inspections.  

 
(h) Hospital shall provide Program Participants with access to and Participating 

Students with required training in the proper use of electronic medical records 
or paper charts, as applicable. 

 
(i) Hospital shall provide student security badges or other means of secure 

access to Facility patient care areas. 
 
(j) Hospital shall provide Program Participants with computer access, and 

access to call rooms, if necessary. 
 
(k) Hospital shall provide secure storage space for Participating Students’ 

personal items when at the Facility. 
 
(l) Hospital shall provide qualified and competent staff members in adequate 

number for the instruction and supervision of students using the Facility. 
 
(j)  Hospital shall maintain the confidentiality of information it receives from 

School about a Participating Student in a manner consistent with Hospital’s 
policies regarding confidentiality of employee records. 

 
3. MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITIES.  The Parties shall cooperate to fulfill the following 

mutual responsibilities: 

(a) Each Party will identify to the other Party a Clinical Program representative 

Page 207 of 589

DRAFT



10 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

(each a “Program Representative”) on or before the execution of this 
Agreement.  School’s Program Representative shall be a faculty member who 
will be responsible for Participating Student teaching and assessment 
provided pursuant to this Agreement.  Each Party will maintain a Program 
Representative for the Term and will promptly appoint a replacement Program 
Representative if necessary to comply with this Agreement.  Each Party will 
ensure that its Program Representative is reasonably available to the other 
Party’s Program Representative. 

 
(b) School will provide qualified and competent Degree Program faculty in 

adequate number for the instruction, assessment and supervision of 
Participating Students at the Facility.   

(c) Both School and Hospital will work together to maintain a Clinical Program 
emphasis on high quality patient care.  At the request of either Party, a 
meeting or teleconference will promptly be held between the Parties’ 
respective Program Representatives to resolve any problems in the operation 
of the Clinical Program. 

(d) School acknowledges, and will inform Participating Students that Participating 
Students are trainees in the Clinical Program and have no expectation of 
receiving compensation or future employment from Hospital or School.  
Participating Students are not to replace Hospital staff and are not to render 
unsupervised patient care and/or services.  Hospital and its staff will provide 
such supervision of the educational and clinical activities as is reasonable and 
appropriate to the circumstances and to the Participating Student’s level of 
training. 

 
(e) Any courtesy appointments to faculty or staff by either School or Hospital 

shall be without entitlement of the individual to compensation or benefits for 
the appointed party. 

 
(f) Both School and Hospital will work together to create and maintain an 

appropriate learning environment for the Participating Students. 
 
(g) The School, including its faculty, staff and residents, and the Hospital share 

responsibility for creating an appropriate learning environment that includes  
both formal learning activities and the attitudes, values, and informal 
"lessons" conveyed by individuals who interact with the Participating Student. 
The parties will cooperate to evaluate the learning environment (which may 
include on-site visits) to identify positive and negative influences on the 
maintenance of professional standards, and to conduct and develop 
appropriate strategies to enhance the positive and mitigate the negative 
influences. 

 
4. WITHDRAWAL OF PARTICIPATING STUDENTS.  Hospital may immediately remove a 

Participating Student from the Facility when in Hospital’s discretion his or her clinical 

Page 208 of 589

DRAFT



11 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

performance is unsatisfactory or his or her behavior is disruptive or detrimental to 
Hospital operations and/or Hospital’s patients.  In such event, School will immediately 
remove the Participating Student from the Clinical Program.  It is understood that only 
School can dismiss the Participating Student from the Clinical Program.  School may 
terminate a Participating Student’s participating in the Clinical Program when it 
determines, in its sole discretion, that further participation by the student would no 
longer be appropriate.   

 
5. FEES.  All fees generated by or in connection with services provided by Program 

Participants to Hospital patients belong to Hospital.  School on behalf of itself and each 
Program Participant hereby assigns to Hospital all right, title and interest (if any) in and 
to such fees.  If School or any Program Participant receives any fees or other 
reimbursement for services provided by Program Participants to Hospital patients, 
School will and will cause Program Participants to immediately deliver and endorse over 
to Hospital all such amounts. School will and will cause Program Participants not to bill 
Hospital patients for services provided.  School will and will cause Program Participants 
to take all actions and execute all documents reasonably requested by Hospital in order 
for Hospital to collect fees and payments for health care services provided by Program 
Participants.   

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR; NO OTHER BENEFICIARIES; EMPLOYMENT DISCLAIMER.   

(a) The Parties hereby acknowledge that they are independent contractors, and 
neither School nor any of its agents, representatives, Program Participants, or 
employees shall be considered agents, representatives, or employees of 
Hospital.  In no event shall this Agreement be construed as establishing a 
partnership or joint venture or similar relationship between the Parties.  
School shall be liable for its own debts, obligations, acts and omissions, 
including the payment of all required withholding, social security and other 
taxes or benefits.  No Program Participant shall look to Hospital for any 
salaries, insurance or other benefits.  No Program Participant or other third 
person is entitled to, and shall not, receive any rights under this Agreement.  
Neither Party shall have the right or authority nor hold itself out to have the 
right or authority to bind the other Party and neither shall either Party be 
responsible for the acts or omissions of the other except as provided 
specifically to the contrary herein.  

(b) Each Party acknowledges Participating Students will not be considered 
employees or agents of Hospital or School for any purpose related to this 
Agreement.  Participating Students will not be entitled to receive any 
compensation from Hospital or School or any benefits of employment from 
Hospital or School in exchange for their activities related to this Agreement, 
including health care or workers’ compensation benefits, vacation, sick time, 
or other direct or indirect benefit of employment.   

(c) School acknowledges that Hospital has not and is not obligated to implement 
or maintain insurance coverage for the benefit or protection of School or 

Page 209 of 589

DRAFT



12 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

Program Participants.   

7. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  There shall be no discrimination on the basis of race, 
national origin, religion, creed, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, veteran 
status, or disability in either the selection of Participating Students, or as to any aspect 
of the Clinical Program; provided, however, that with respect to a disability, the disability 
must not be such as would, even with reasonable accommodation, in and of itself 
preclude the Program Participant's effective participation in the Clinical Program. 
 

8. INDEMNIFICATION.  To the extent permitted by applicable law and without waiving 
any defenses, School shall indemnify and hold harmless Hospital and Hospital’s 
officers, directors, trustees, medical and nursing staff, representatives and employees 
from and against all third-party liabilities, claims, damages and expenses, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, relating to or arising out of any act or omission of School or 
any of its Program Participants, agents, representatives or employees in connection 
with this Agreement, including, but not limited to, claims for personal injury, professional 
liability, or with respect to the failure to make proper payment of required taxes, 
withholding, employee benefits or statutory or other entitlements.   

9. CONFIDENTIALITY.  School will and will advise Program Participants to keep strictly 
confidential and hold in trust all non-public information of Hospital, including all patient 
information, and refrain from disclosing such confidential information to any third party 
without the express prior written consent of Hospital, provided that the minimum 
necessary confidential information may be disclosed pursuant to valid legal process 
after Hospital is permitted an opportunity to minimize the potential harmful effects of 
such disclosure.  School shall not disclose the terms of this Agreement to any person 
who is not a party to this Agreement, except as required by law or as authorized by 
Hospital. These confidentiality requirements survive the termination or expiration of the 
Agreement.  In addition to the requirements set forth in this Section, Program 
Participants shall abide by the terms of Exhibit B. 

10. TERM; TERMINATION. 

(a) The term of this Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and will 
continue for two (2) years unless terminated as provided below (the “Term”). 

(b) Either Party may terminate this Agreement at any time without cause upon at 
least sixty (60) calendar days prior written notice to the other Party, provided 
that all Participating Students participating in the Program at the time of notice 
of termination or who are already scheduled to train at the Facility shall be 
given the opportunity to complete the then-current Program rotation or 
previously scheduled clinical assignment. 

(c) The Parties may terminate this Agreement at any time by mutual written 
agreement. 

(d) Hospital may immediately terminate this Agreement at any time upon notice 

Page 210 of 589

DRAFT



13 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

to School in the event of a breach of Section 11 of this Agreement.  
 

11. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.   

(a) School hereby represents to Hospital as of the Effective Date and warrants to 
Hospital for the Term that: 

(i) School and its Program Participants: (A) are not excluded, debarred, or 
otherwise ineligible to participate in the Federal health care programs as 
defined in 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b(f) (the “Federal health care 
programs”); (B) are not convicted of a criminal offense related to the 
provision of health care items or services but has not yet been excluded, 
debarred or otherwise declared ineligible to participate in the Federal 
health care programs, and (C) are not under investigation or otherwise 
aware of any circumstances which may result in the School, or a Program 
Participant being excluded from participation in the Federal health care 
programs; and 

(ii) in the aggregate, School and all of School’s affiliates compensate all 
physician employees and physician contractors (if any) (A) in an amount 
that is consistent with fair market value for actual services provided, and 
(B) in a manner that does not vary with or take into account the volume or 
value of patient referrals to, or other business generated for, Hospital or 
any of Hospital's affiliates.  Furthermore, all of School's and its affiliates' 
compensation arrangements with physician employees and physician 
contractors are memorialized in a signed written agreement or other 
satisfy an exception to the Stark Law physician referral prohibitions 
provided in 42 U.S.C. § 1395nn(a)(1). 

(b) The representation and warranty set forth above is an ongoing representation 
and warranty for the Term of this Agreement.  School will immediately notify 
Hospital in writing of any change in status of the representation and warranty 
set forth in this section. 

12. TRAVEL EXPENSES.  No expense of School or of a Program Participant will be paid 
or reimbursed by Hospital unless that expense is approved by Hospital in writing in 
advance and is incurred and documented in accordance with applicable Hospital travel 
and expense policies. 

13. USE OF NAME OR LOGO.  Neither Party will use the names, logos or marks 
associated with the other Party without the express written consent of the Party who is 
associated with the name, logo or marks.  Further, School will cause Program 
Participants not to use the names, logos or marks associated with Hospital without the 
express written consent of Hospital in each case.  

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement and its Exhibits set forth the entire 
Agreement with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior 

Page 211 of 589

DRAFT



14 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

agreements, oral or written, and all other communications between the Parties relating 
to such subject matter.  This Agreement may not be amended or modified except by 
mutual written agreement of the Parties.  All continuing covenants, duties and 
obligations herein shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 
 

15. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable for any reason, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect in 
accordance with its terms disregarding such unenforceable or invalid provision. 
 

16. CAPTIONS.  The captions contained herein are used solely for convenience and 
shall not be deemed to define or limit the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

17. NO WAIVER.  Delay or failure to exercise any right or remedy hereunder will not 
impair such right or remedy or be construed as a waiver thereof.  Any single or partial 
exercise of any right or remedy will not preclude any other or further exercise thereof or 
the exercise of any other right or remedy.   
 

18. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the state in which Hospital is located.  Venue for all 
disputes arising in connection with this Agreement will be in the federal or state courts 
with jurisdiction for the area where the Hospital is located. 
 

19. ASSIGNMENT; BINDING EFFECT.  School may not assign or transfer any of its rights, 
duties or obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written 
consent of Hospital.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, 
the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
 

20. NOTICES.  All notices hereunder by either Party to the other shall be in writing, 
delivered personally, by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by 
overnight courier, and shall be deemed to have been duly given when delivered 
personally or when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed as 
follows: 

 If to Division  Todd LaCaze 
    HCA South Atlantic Division 
    115 Central Island Street, Suite 400 
    Charleston, SC 29492 
    Attention: Division Chief Financial Officer 
 
 Copy to:  HCA  
    One Park Plaza, Bldg. 1, 2-West 
    Nashville, TN 37203 
    Attention:  Operations Counsel 
 
 If to School:  The School Board of Clay County, Florida 
    ATTN: Supervisor of Career and Tech Education 
    2306 Kingsley Avenue 

Page 212 of 589

DRAFT



15 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

    Building 21 
                                      Orange Park, Florida, 32073 
 
or to such other person or place as either Party may from time to time designate by 
written notice to the other Party. 
 

21. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple parts (by facsimile 
transmission or otherwise) and each counterpart shall be deemed an original, and all of 
which together shall constitute but one agreement.  Electronic signatures will be 
considered originals. 

 
22. HIPAA REQUIREMENTS.  To the extent applicable to this Agreement, School 

agrees to comply with the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical 
Health Act of 2009 (the “HITECH ACT”), the Administrative Simplification provisions of 
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as codified at 42 USC § 
1320d through d-8 (“HIPAA”) and any current and future regulations promulgated under 
either the HITECH Act or HIPAA including without limitation the federal privacy 
regulations contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164 (the “Federal Privacy 
Regulations”), the federal security standards contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 
164 (the “Federal Security Regulations”) and the federal standards for electronic 
transactions, all as may be amended from time to time, and all collectively referred to 
herein as “HIPAA Requirements”.  School further agrees not to use or disclose any 
Protected Health Information (as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 164.501) or Individually 
Identifiable Health Information (as defined in 42 USC § 1320d), other than as permitted 
by HIPAA Requirements and the terms of this Agreement.  School will and will cause 
Program Participants to enter into any further agreements as necessary to facilitate 
compliance with HIPAA Requirements. 
 

23. NO REQUIREMENT TO REFER.  Nothing in this Agreement requires or obligates 
School to cause the admittance of a patient to Hospital or to use Hospital’s services.  
None of the benefits granted pursuant to this Agreement are conditioned on any 
requirement or expectation that the Parties make referrals to, be in a position to make or 
influence referrals to, or otherwise generate business for the other Party.  Neither Party 
is restricted from referring any services to, or otherwise generating any business for, 
any other entity of their choosing. 

 
24.  NO PAYMENTS.  Except as provided in Section 5, no payments will be made by 

either Party to the Program Participants in connection with this Agreement. 
 
25.  RECITALS.  The Recitals to this Agreement shall be an enforceable part of this 

Agreement, binding on the Parties as if fully set forth herein.  

26.  EQUITABLE REMEDIES.  School acknowledges that the injury which might be 
suffered by Hospital in the event of any breach by School or non-compliance by 
Program Participants with the terms and conditions of this Agreement would be of a 
nature which could not be fully compensated for solely by a recovery of monetary 
damages, and accordingly agrees that in the event of any such breach or threatened 

Page 213 of 589

DRAFT



16 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

breach, in addition to and not in lieu of any damages sustained by Hospital and any 
other remedies which Hospital may pursue hereunder or under applicable law, Hospital 
shall have the right to equitable relief, including issuance of a temporary restraining 
order, preliminary injunction and/or permanent injunction by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, against the commission or continuation of such breach or threatened 
breach, without the necessity of proving any actual damages or the posting of any bond. 

WHEREFORE, authorized representatives of each Party hereby execute this 
Agreement as of the Effective Date. 
 
 
 
 
 

The School Board of Clay County, Florida 
 
 _____________________________________ 

   
                                                    By: Ashley Gilhousen 

 
                                                      Title: School Board Chair 

                                                       Date:        

 HCA South Atlantic Division 
 

         
 
By:  Todd LaCaze     
 
Title:  Division Chief Financial Offer    

 
      Date:        
 
 
  
 
 

 

Page 214 of 589

DRAFT



17 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

Attachment A 
 

Walterboro Community Hospital, Inc. 
d/b/a Colleton Medical Center 

501 Robertson Blvd, Walterboro, SC 
29488 

Doctors Hospital of Augusta, LLC d/b/a 
Doctors Hospital 

3651 Wheeler Rd, Augusta, GA 30909 

Grand Strand Regional Medical Center, 
LLC d/b/a Grand Strand Regional Medical 
Center 

809 82nd Pkwy, Myrtle Beach, SC 29572 

Memorial Healthcare Group, Inc. d/b/a 
Memorial Hospital Jacksonville 

3625 University Blvd S, Jacksonville, FL 
32216 

Southeast Georgia Health Services, LLC 
d/b/a Memorial Satilla Health 

1900 Tebeau St, Waycross, GA 31501 

Orange Park Medical Center, Inc. d/b/a 
Orange Park Medical Center 

2001 Kingsley Ave, Orange Park, FL 
32073 

Trident Medical Center, LLC d/b/a Trident 
Medical Center 

9330 Medical Plaza Dr, Charleston, SC 
29406 

Trident Medical Center, LLC, d/b/a 
Summerville Medical Center 

295 Midland Pkwy, Summerville, SC 
29485 

Fairview Park, L.P. d/b/a Fairview Park 
Hospital 

200 Industrial Blvd, Dublin, GA 31021 

Savannah Health Services, LLC d/b/a 
Memorial University Medical Center 

4700 Waters Ave, Savannah, GA 31404 

Vidalia Health Services, LLC d/b/a 
Memorial Health Meadows Hospital 

One Meadows Parkway, Vidalia, GA 
30474 

Page 215 of 589

DRAFT



18 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

 Attachment B 
 

 
(MLS) Medical/Clinical Laboratory Science 

 
(MLT) Medical/Clinical Laboratory Technician 

 
Advanced Practice Registered Nurse (APRN) 

 
Anesthesia 

 
Anesthesiologist Assistant 

 
Athletic Training 

 
Bachelor of Social Work 

 
Cardiac Sonography 

 
Cardiovascular 

 
Central Sterile Processing 

 
Certified Nursing Assistant 

 
Certified Surgical Technician 

 
Child Life 

 
Clinical Mental Health 

 
Communication Sciences and Disorders 

 
Community Health 

 
Counseling 

 
CRNA 

 
Darton OT/OTA 

 
Diagnostic Medical Sonography 

 
Dietetics 

 
Doctor of Medicine 

 
Doctorate of Nursing Practice (DNP) 

 
Echocardiography 

 
EEG 

 
EKG Tech 

 
Electroneurodiagnostic Technician 

 
Emergency Medical Technology (EMT)/Paramedics 

 
Exercise Science 

 
Family Nurse Practitioner (FNP) 

 
Fellows 

 
Genetics Counseling 

 
Geriatric Management 

 
Grad Practicum 

Page 216 of 589

DRAFT



19 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

 
Graduate Nursing 

 
Health Administration 

 
Health Administration - Health Information 

 
Histotech 

 
Imaging 

 
Laboratory 

 
Lactation Consultant 

 
Licensed Practical Nurse (LPN) 

 
Medical Assistant (MA) 

 
Medical Dosimetry 

 
Medical Physicist 

 
Medical Student 

 

MSW / Licensed Clinical Social Worker 

 
Music Therapy 

 
Neurodiagnostic Technologist 

 
Nuclear Medicine 

 
Nurse Educator 

 
Nurse Practitioner (NP) 

 
Nursing (Undergraduate RN) 

 
Nursing Informatics 

 
Nursing MSN 

 
Nursing Preceptorship 

 
Nutrition 

 
Occupational Therapy 

 
Ortho PA 

 
Osteopathic Medicine 

 
Paramedic/Flight Paramedic 

 
Pastoral Care 

 
Patient Care Tech Program 

 
Pharmacy - PharmD 

 
Pharmacy - Technician 

 
Phlebotomy 

 
Physical Therapy 

 
Physical Therapy Assistant 

 
Physician Assistant (PA) 

 
Public Health 

Page 217 of 589

DRAFT



20 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

 
Radiation Therapy 

 
Radiology 

 
Rehab Therapy 

 
Residents 

 
Respiratory Therapy 

 
Senior Practicum - ASN 

 
Senior Practicum - BSN 

 
Social Services 

 
Social Work - MSW 

 
Sonography 

 
Speech (ST) 

 
Sterile Processing 

 
Student Registered Nurse Anesthetist (SRNA) 

 
Surgical First Assistant 

 
Surgical Tech 

 
WOC Program 

 

 
 
 

Page 218 of 589

DRAFT



21 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY 
 
 

For and in consideration of the benefit provided the undersigned in the form of 
experience in a clinical setting at _________________________________________ 
("Hospital"), the undersigned and his/her heirs, successors and/or assigns do hereby 
covenant and agree to assume all risks and be solely responsible for any injury or loss 
sustained by the undersigned while participating in the Program operated by: 
________________________________________ ("School") at Hospital unless such 
injury or loss arises solely out of Hospital's gross negligence or willful misconduct. 
 
 
 
             
Signature of Program Participant/Print Name   Date 
 
 
 
             
Parent or Legal Guardian     Date 
If Program Participant is under 18 / Print Name 
 
 

Page 219 of 589

DRAFT



22 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

Exhibit B 
 

Workforce Member Confidentiality and Security Agreement 
 

I understand that the HCA affiliated entity(ies) (the “Company”) for which I am a 
Workforce Member (my “Engagement”) manages health information and has legal 
and ethical responsibilities to safeguard the privacy of its patients and their 
personal and health information (“Patient Information”). “Workforce Member” means 
employees, employed Licensed Independent Practitioners (LIPs) (e.g., 
employed/managed physicians), employed Advanced Practice Professionals 
(APPs), residents/fellows, students (e.g., nursing, medical, and interns), 
faculty/instructors, contractors (e.g., HealthTrust Workforce Solutions (HWS), 
travelers, network/per diem staff, or dependent healthcare professionals and/or 
contracted through another temporary staffing agency), and volunteers. 

 

Additionally, the Company must protect its interest in, and the confidentiality of, any 
information it maintains or has access to, including, but not limited to, financial 
information, marketing information, Human Resource Information, (as defined below), 
payroll, business plans, projections, sales figures, pricing information, budgets, credit 
card or other financial account numbers, customer and supplier identities and 
characteristics, sponsored research, processes, schematics, formulas, trade secrets, 
innovations, discoveries, data, dictionaries, models, organizational structure and 
operations information, strategies, forecasts, analyses, credentialing information, Social 
Security numbers, passwords, PINs, and encryption keys (collectively, with patients’ 
information, “Confidential Information”). The Company must also protect Company 
Property (such as inventions, software, trade secrets, and Developments (as 
defined below)). 

 

During the course of my Engagement with the Company, I understand that I may 
access, use, or create Confidential Information. I agree that I will access and use 
Confidential Information only when it is necessary to perform my job-related duties 
and in accordance with the Company’s policies and procedures, including, without 
limitation, its Privacy and Security Policies (available at 
http://hcahealthcare.com/ethics-compliance/ and the Information Protection Page of 
the Company’s intranet). I further acknowledge that I must comply with such 
policies, procedures, and this Confidentiality and Security Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) at all times as a condition of my Engagement and in order to obtain 
authorization for access to Confidential Information and/or Company systems. I 
acknowledge that the Company is relying on such compliance and the 
representations, terms and conditions stated herein. 

 

General  

1. I will act in the best interest of the Company and, to the extent subject to it, in 
accordance with its Code of Conduct at all times during my Engagement with 
the Company. 

Page 220 of 589

DRAFT



23 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

2. I have no expectation of privacy when using Company systems and/or 
devices. The Company may log, access, review, and otherwise utilize 
information stored on or passing through its systems, devices and network, 
including email. 

3. Any violation of this Agreement may result in the loss of my access to 
Confidential Information and/or Company systems, or other disciplinary and/or 
legal action, including, without limitation, suspension, loss of privileges, and/or 
termination of my Engagement with the Company, at Company’s sole discretion 
in accordance with its policies. 

 

Patient Information 

4. I will access and use Patient Information only for patients whose information 
I need to perform my assigned job duties in accordance with the HIPAA 
Privacy and Security Rules (45 CFR Parts 160—164), applicable state and 
international laws (e.g., the European Union General Data Protection 
Regulation), and applicable Company policies and procedures, including, 
without limitation, its Privacy and Security Policies (available at 
http://hcahealthcare.com/ethics-compliance/ and the Information Protection 
Page of the Company’s intranet). 

5. I will only access, request and disclose the minimum amount of Patient 
Information needed to carry out my assigned job duties or as needed for 
treatment purposes. 
 

6. By accessing or attempting to access Patient Information, I represent to the 
Company at the time of access that I have the requisite job-related need to 
know and to access the Patient Information. 

 

Protecting Confidential Information  

7. I acknowledge that the Company is the exclusive owner of all right, title and 
interest in and to Confidential Information, including any derivatives thereof. 

8. I will not publish, disclose or discuss any Confidential Information (a) with 
others, including coworkers, peers, friends or family, who do not have a need 
to know it, or (b) by using communication methods I am not specifically 
authorized to use, including personal email, Internet sites, Internet blogs or 
social media sites. 

9. I will not take any form of media or documentation containing Confidential 
Information from Company premises unless specifically authorized to do so 
as part of my job and in accordance with Company policies. 

10. I will not transmit Confidential Information outside the Company network 
unless I am specifically authorized to do so as part of my job responsibilities. 
If I am authorized to transmit Confidential Information outside of the 
Company, I will ensure that the information is encrypted according to 
Company Information Security Standards and ensure that I have complied 
with the External Data Release policy and other applicable Company privacy 
policies. 

11. I will not retain Confidential Information longer than required by the 
Company’s Record Retention policy. 

Page 221 of 589

DRAFT



24 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

12. I will only reuse or destroy media in accordance with the Company’s 
Information Security Standards. 
13. I acknowledge that in the course of performing my job responsibilities I may 

have access to human resource information which may include 
compensation, age, sex, race, religion, national origin, disability status, 
medical information, criminal history, personal identification numbers, 
addresses, telephone numbers, financial and education information  
(collectively, “Human Resource Information”). I understand that I am allowed 
to discuss any Human Resource Information about myself and other 
employees if they self-disclose their information. I can also discuss Human 
Resource Information that does not relate to my individual employment or my 
job responsibilities and that is not in violation of any other provision in this 
Agreement. 

 

Using Mobile Devices, Portable Devices and Removable Media 

14. I will not copy, transfer, photograph, or store Confidential Information on any 
mobile devices, portable devices or removable media, such as laptops, smart 
phones, tablets, CDs, thumb drives, external hard drives, unless specifically 
required and authorized to do so as part of my Engagement with the 
Company. 

15. I understand that any mobile device (smart phone, tablet, or similar device) 
that synchronizes Company data (e.g., Company email) may contain 
Confidential Information and as a result, must be protected as required by 
Company Information Security Standards. 

 

Doing My Part – Personal Security 

16. I will only access or use systems or devices I am authorized to access, and 
will not demonstrate the operation or function of systems or devices to 
unauthorized individuals. 

17. I will not attempt to bypass Company security controls. 
18. I understand that I will be assigned a unique identifier (i.e., 3-4 User ID) to 

track my access and use of Company systems and that the identifier is 
associated with my personal data provided as part of the initial and/or 
periodic credentialing and/or employment verification. 

19. In connection with my Engagement, I will never: 
a. disclose or share user credentials (e.g., password, SecurID card, Tap n Go 

badge, etc.), PINs, access codes, badges, or door lock codes; 
b. use another individual’s, or allow another individual to use my, user 

credentials (e.g., 3-4 User ID and password, SecurID card, Tap n Go 
badge, etc.) to access or use a Company computer system or device; 

c. allow a non-authorized individual to access a secured area (e.g., hold 
the door open, share badge or door lock codes, and/or prop the door 
open); 

d. use tools or techniques to break, circumvent or exploit security measures;  
e. connect unauthorized systems or devices to the Company network; or 
f. use software that has not been licensed and approved by the Company. 

Page 222 of 589

DRAFT



25 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

20. I will practice good workstation security measures such as locking up media 
when not in use, using screen savers with passwords, positioning screens 
away from public view, and physically securing workstations while traveling 
and working remotely. 

21. I will immediately notify my manager, Facility Information Security Official 
(FISO), Director of Information Security Assurance (DISA), Facility Privacy 
Official (FPO), Ethics and Compliance Officer (ECO), or Facility or Corporate 
Client Support Services (CSS) help desk or if involving the United Kingdom, 
the Data Protection Officer (DPO), Information Governance Manager, 
Caldicott Guardian, Heads of Governance (HoG), Division Chief Information 
Security Officer (CISO) if: 
a. my user credentials have been seen, disclosed, lost, stolen, or 
otherwise compromised;  
b. I suspect media with Confidential Information has been lost or stolen; 
c. I suspect a virus or malware infection on any system; 
d. I become aware of any activity that violates this Agreement or any 

Company privacy or security policies; or 
e. I become aware of any other incident that could possibly have any 

adverse impact on Confidential Information or Company systems. 
 

Upon Separation 

22. I agree that my obligations under this Agreement will continue after 
termination or expiration of my access to Company systems and Company 
Information. 

23. At the end of my Engagement with the Company for any reason, I will 
immediately: 
a. securely return to the Company any Confidential Information, Company 

related documents or records, and Company owned media (e.g., smart 
phones, tablets, CDs, thumb drives, external hard drives, etc.). I will not 
keep any copies of Confidential Information in any format, including 
electronic; and 

b. un-enroll any non-Company owned devices from the Company 
Enterprise Mobility Management System, if applicable. 

 

Except to the Extent Otherwise Agreed in a Separate Agreement, the Following 
Statements Apply to All Workforce Members 

24. I shall promptly disclose to the Company all Company Property that I 
develop during my Engagement. "Company Property" means any subject 
matter (including inventions, improvements, designs, original works of 
authorship,  formulas, processes, compositions of matter, software, 
databases, confidential information and trade secrets), whether belonging to 
the Company or others, that, directly or indirectly: (i) I author, make, 
conceive, first reduce to practice, or otherwise create or develop, whether 
alone or with others using any Company equipment, supplies, facilities, or 
Confidential Information, or (ii) otherwise arises from work performed by me 
for the Company, its employees, or agents, (each of the foregoing, a 

Page 223 of 589

DRAFT



26 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

"Development").  
25. As between me and the Company, all Company Property is the property of 

the Company or its designee, and all copyrightable Developments that I 
create within the scope of my employment are "works made for hire." 

26. I agree to assign, and do hereby irrevocably assign, to the Company or its 
designee all of my right, title, and interest in and to any and all 
Developments, together with all intellectual property and other proprietary 
rights therein or arising therefrom, including any registrations or applications 
to register such rights and the right to sue for past, present, or future 
infringements or misappropriations thereof. 
 

27. During and after my Engagement, I agree to execute any document and 
perform any act to effectuate, perfect, enforce, and defend the Company's 
rights in any Development. I hereby appoint the Company and its authorized 
agent(s) as my attorney in fact to execute such documents in my name for 
these purposes, which power of attorney shall be coupled with an interest 
and shall be irrevocable, if I fail to execute any such document within five (5) 
business days. 

28. If there is a conflict between a term in Sections 24 through 28 and a term 
separately agreed to in writing with the Company, the term set forth in the 
separate agreement will control. 

 

By signing this document, I acknowledge that I have read and understand this 
Agreement, and I agree to be bound by and comply with all the representations, 

terms and conditions stated herein. 

  
Signature: 

 
Date: 

 

Printed Name: 

 
3/4 ID: 

 

 

Page 224 of 589

DRAFT



27 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Attestation of Satisfactory Background Investigation  
 
On behalf of _______________________ [Name of Volunteer Organization, School, 
Contract Services Entity, or Staffing Agency], I acknowledge and attest to 
__________________ [Name of facility] (“Hospital”) that we own, and have in our 
possession, a background investigation report on the individual identified below.  Such 
background investigation is satisfactory in that it: 
 
____ verifies the Subject’s Social Security Number 
____ does not reveal any criminal activity; 
____ confirms the individual is not on either the GSA or OIG exclusion lists; 
____ confirms the individual is not on a State exclusion list, if any; 
____ confirms the individual is not listed as a violent sexual offender;  
____ confirms this individual is not on the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign 
Assets Control 
         list of Specially Designation Nationals; and 
____ no other aspect of the investigation required by Hospital reveals information of 
concern; and 
 
 
 
 
This attestation is provided in lieu of providing a copy of the background investigation. 
 
Identified Individual Subject to the Background Investigation: 
 
 Name:            
 
 Address:           
 
 Date of Birth:       
 
 Social Security Number:      
 
 
              
      Signature 
 
              
      Printed Name 
 
              
      [Name of Organization] 
       

Page 225 of 589

DRAFT



28 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

83931123\V-2 

 

Date:        
 
 
 
 

Page 226 of 589

DRAFT



29 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

Exhibit D 
Faculty Responsibilities 

 
 
The undersigned faculty or preceptor for the Clinical Program (“Faculty”) agrees to and 
acknowledges the following: 
 
a) Faculty has been engaged by [                        ] (“School”) to serve as onsite 

faculty or preceptor for School’s students in [                        ] (“Clinical Program”);  
 

b) Faculty (i) is currently and will continue to be licensed by the state in which the 
Hospital is located, (ii) is clinically competent, (iii) has the privilege(s) as required 
by Hospital to perform all clinical services required for or relating to the Clinical 
Program and (iv) carries professional liability insurance in the minimum amounts 
of one million dollars per occurrence and three million dollars annual aggregate, 
and shall provide evidence of such insurance to Hospital upon request;  

 
c) Faculty shall understand the content, scope and educational preparation of the 

students prior to their clinical rotation at Hospital; 
 
d) Faculty shall orient the students to the Hospital and provide information regarding 

the Hospital's rules, regulations, policies, and procedures. As part of the 
orientation, Faculty will inform students that they will be expected to adhere to all 
Hospital policies (including but not limited to policies related to patient care 
issues, such as confidentiality of patient records and information); 

 
e) Faculty shall provide students suitable clinical experience and cases as 

prescribed by the curriculum provided by School; 
 
f) Faculty shall evaluate performance of students in the Clinical Program as 

required by School and using forms provided by School; 
 
g) Faculty shall act as the students’ clinical advisor and supervisor for the duration 

of their clinical rotation at Hospital, and shall be fully responsible for the actions 
or omissions of the students under his or her supervision;  

 
h) Faculty represents and warrants that he or she is not compensated by School or 

its affiliate in connection with faculty or preceptor services provided in connection 
with the Clinical Program; and  

 
i) Faculty represents and warrants to Hospital he or she is not (i) currently 

excluded, debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in the federal health 
care programs as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(f) (the “Federal health care 
programs”); (ii) convicted of a criminal offense related to the provision of health 
care items or services but have not yet been excluded, debarred, or otherwise 
declared ineligible to participate in the Federal health care programs; and (iii) 

Page 227 of 589

DRAFT



30 Revised 3-2023/ 1 Use School Affiliation for Non-Medical Students Only 

 

under investigation or otherwise aware of any circumstances which may result in 
Faculty being excluded from participation in the Federal health care programs. 
 

 
       Faculty: 
 
       ______________________________ 

          Name: [                                   ] 
       Date: [                                ] 
 

Page 228 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Liberty University (LU)

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and Liberty University for LU students to participate in
clinical/occupational experiences under the direction of a qualified supervisor in Clay County schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, counseling interns cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would thereby prevent potential
counselor candidates from choosing Clay to begin their career.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has agreements with 26 Colleges/Universities, and has an agreement with LU for interns
to be placed in Clay that expires in 8/2023.  This agreement would allow counseling students to be placed in Clay. 

Expected Outcomes
Placement of counselor candidates  provides real-world experiences to better prepare them for the rigors of counseling in the
Prek-12 educational setting.  LU is currently requesting the placement of 1 student, and this agreement will allow for future
counseling interns to be placed over the duration of the contract period.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Talent Recruitment, Development, and Retention
 
Strategy 1.1: Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement between Clay County District Schools and Liberty University.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0

Review Comments

Attachments

The School Board of Clay County FL AA (LU signed).pdf

Page 229 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/the-school-board-of-clay-county-fl-aa-lu-signed.pdf


1 
 

LIBERTY UNIVERSITY, INC. 
CLINICAL AFFILIATION AGREEMENT 

COUNSELOR EDUCATION & FAMILY STUDIES 
 

 
THIS CLINICAL AFFILIATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) made this 

______ day of August, 2023 (“Effective Date”), by and between LIBERTY 
UNIVERSITY, INC. (“Liberty”) and The School Board of Clay County, Florida  
(“Affiliate”), on behalf of itself and its affiliates and subsidiaries, if any; 

 
RECITALS: 

 
WHEREAS, Liberty, as part of its formal, educational course of studies may 

require Clinical/Occupational Experiences of Students participating in their Mental 
Health Counseling program, and desires to assign certain of its Students to one or 
more of Affiliate’s facilities to obtain such Clinical/Occupational Experience; and 

 
WHEREAS, Affiliate, in service to the community and to promote high 

standards of preparation and training for Students, is willing to provide the necessary 
facilities for Clinical/Occupational Experiences; for Students participating in 
Liberty’s Mental Health Counseling program. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and mutual 

covenants and promises contained herein, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties hereto agree as follows: 

 
1.0 Definitions. 

 
1.1 “Liaison” shall mean the individual appointed by or designated by 

Affiliate to administer the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
1.2 “Clinical/Occupational Experience” shall mean a structured learning 

experience at an Affiliate facility in which a Student provides care to patients/clients 
under the guidance of a Supervisor and/or participates in observational and/or other 
educational activities appropriate to the Student's level of preparation. In the context 
of this Agreement, said clinical experience is limited to the provision of mental 
health counseling. To facilitate an efficient Clinical/Occupational Experience, 
Liberty utilizes certain web based technology, including but not limited to WebEx 
Teams provided by Cisco, to enable Student to digitally record video and audio 

Page 230 of 589

DRAFT



2 
 

content from counseling sessions, share all or portions of video and audio recordings 
with Faculty and other  students participating in the Program, and upload video and 
audio recordings of sessions to a protected digital platform for viewing by Faculty 
Member for purposes of instruction and grading Student’s performance.  Said 
student is responsible for deleting the video and audio recording upon completion of 
Faculty Member’s use for purposes of instruction and grading.  Affiliate 
acknowledges that Liberty utilizes  such technology, including the video and audio 
recording of counseling sessions in which  Student participates, and agrees to obtain 
any necessary authorization or consent from a participating patient of Affiliate for 
Faculty Member’s and Student’s use of the digitally recorded video and audio 
content for purposes of instruction and training.   

 
1.3 “Director” shall mean the Liberty’s Director of the Program in which 

the Student is participating. 
 
1.4 “Faculty Member” shall mean the member of Liberty’s academic 

faculty who has direct oversight of the Student in the program and who has been 
assigned by Liberty to administer the provisions of this Agreement. 

 
1.5 “Facility” shall mean any facility owned and/or operated by Affiliate, 

including but not limited to clinics, and office based clinical programs,  
1.6 “Supervisor” shall mean an individual who has been approved by the 

Director or Faculty Member to facilitate Student learning and to provide guidance 
to Students at the Facility as part of the Clinical/Occupational Experience. 

1.7 “Patient” shall mean any student enrolled at said facility, or their 
parents or guardians, who are allowed, selected or assigned to participate, and is 
participating in or receiving mental health counseling at the facility. 

 
1.8 “Program” shall individually and collectively mean the program(s) in 

which Student(s) is/are enrolled at Liberty and in which Student receives all pre- 
placement training and education related to his or her field. 

 
1.9 “School Year” shall mean the period from the first day of the Liberty 

academic calendar in any given academic year to the last day of the Liberty academic 
calendar in the same academic year. 

 
1.10 “Student” shall mean a student officially enrolled in the Program at Liberty 

who participates in a Clinical/Occupational Experience at the Facility. 
 

2.0 Obligations of Liberty. Liberty shall: 

Page 231 of 589

DRAFT



3 
 

 
2.1 Encourage the Student to review his or her objectives for the 

Clinical/Occupational Experience with the Liaison or the Supervisor prior to the start of 
the Clinical/Occupational Experience. 

 
2.2 Maintain policies that obligate Students who perform activities pursuant to 

this Agreement to observe the lawful rules, regulations, policies and procedures of the 
Facility and to adhere to all laws and regulations pertaining to confidentiality and patient 
rights. 

 
2.3 Present for Clinical/Occupational Experiences only those Students who 

have had prior instruction in the relevant program area, and who, in the judgment of the 
Director or Faculty Member, have successfully fulfilled the prerequisites of the 
Program curriculum. 

 
2.4 Provide evaluation forms for the evaluation of Students who participate 

in the Clinical/Occupational Experience. 
 
2.5 Retain responsibility for education of Students in the Program and for the 

design, delivery, quality and curriculum of the Program. 
 
2.6 Maintain all education records and reports relating to the 

Clinical/Occupational Experience of the Students. 
 

2.7 Have the Faculty Member periodically consult with the Liaison 
regarding Student progress and other issues related to administration of this 
Agreement. 
 

2.8 Ensure Students have completed all necessary background 
investigations, if required by the Affiliate, and Affiliate timely notifies Liberty of 
such requirement. 

 
2.9 Require each Student to execute and submit to Affiliate the Student 

Addendum attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A. 
 

2.10 Require each Student to execute and submit to Affiliate the “Student 
Counselor Agreement and Acknowledgment Form” attached hereto as Exhibit B.   
 

Page 232 of 589

DRAFT



4 
 

3.0 Obligations of Affiliate. Affiliate shall: 
 
3.1 Provide facilities suitable for fulfillment of the course objectives for the 

Clinical/Occupational Experience, as mutually agreed upon by the parties. 
 

 
3.2 Determine, upon mutual consideration and agreement, the maximum 

number of Students to be assigned to the Facility for each Clinical/Occupational 
Experience and the schedule for each Clinical/Occupational Experience. 
 

3.3 Where applicable, select patients for Student assignments required by the 
Clinical/Occupational Experience. The Facility may, at its discretion and at any time, 
make changes in the selection of patients for Student assignments. 

 
3.4 Within normal limits imposed by the institutional setting and space 

constraints of the Facility, provide conference rooms, lockers and storage space for the 
Clinical/Occupational Experience as appropriate. 

 
3.5 Permit Students to use cafeteria facilities at their own expense, if available 

to Affiliate employees. 
 
3.6 Where available, permit Students to utilize parking spaces. If parking at an 

Affiliate Facility charges employees for the use of such parking spaces, Students shall 
be responsible for the payment of such parking fees. 

 
3.7 Where available, permit Students to use the library and research 

materials for research and study, if available. 
 

3.8 Orient Students to the Facility and provide information regarding the 
Facility's rules, regulations, policies and procedures. 

 
3.9 Provide patient(s) selected by Affiliate to participate in the 

Clinical/Occupational Experience with and obtain signature from patient(s) on the 
“HIPAA Privacy and Authorization Release Form” attached hereto as Exhibit C.  
Affiliate acknowledges that Students and Faculty Members will utilize the 
technology generally described in Paragraph 1.2 of this Agreement to create and 
review audio and video recordings of counseling sessions for purposes of 
instructions and grading the Student’s performance during the Clinical/Occupational 
Experience.  Affiliate will make disclosures to patient and obtain all authorizations 

Page 233 of 589

DRAFT



5 
 

and consents from patient as may be required by this Agreement or otherwise by law, 
regulation, or its policies and procedures.    

 
3.10 To the extent Affiliate receives education records or otherwise becomes 

aware of information from education records directly related to a Student and 
protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, 20 U.S.C. § 
1232, as amended (popularly known as “FERPA”), and other laws with respect to 
its activities under this Agreement, Affiliate acknowledges it has a duty to maintain 
the privacy of Student education records and agrees that its use and maintenance of 
these education records, including the use and disclosure of personally identifiable 
information concerning a Student from education records, will be in accordance with 
FERPA.  Specifically, Affiliate shall comply with Liberty’s obligations under 
FERPA as a “school official” and FERPA’s “legitimate educational interests” 
limitation on its use or disclosure of education records.  Additionally, Affiliate shall 
implement reasonable and typical administrative, technical, and physical safeguards 
to secure its facilities and systems from unauthorized access, and to secure any 
protected education records Affiliate might possess.  Affiliate agrees to abide by 
FERPA’s limitation on re-disclosure of personally identifiable information in 
education records; to not use or disclose education records created or received from, 
by, or on behalf of Liberty or its Students for any purpose other than the purpose for 
which such disclosure is made; and to not use or disclose such education records 
except as permitted by this Agreement, as required by law, or as authorized by 
Liberty in writing.   

 
3.11 Comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies and procedures 

required of Affiliate in furtherance of the Clinical/Occupational Experience and 
objectives of this Agreement. 

 
4.0  Care to Patients. Affiliate shall retain responsibility for the overall care provided 
to patients in the Facility. Students shall at all times be under the guidance of a 
Supervisor or other qualified individual designated by Affiliate while performing 
activities at the Facility pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Affiliate reserves the 
right to establish limits on the numbers and types of Students permitted in each patient 
care session of the Facility and to restrict specific Student activities in the care of each 
patient.  

 
5.0  Nondiscrimination. Affiliate agrees that it will not discriminate against any 
Student on the basis of color, race, religion, sex, age or national origin, except where 
religion, sex, age, or national origin is a bona fide qualification reasonably necessary to 
the normal operation of the Facility or of Affiliate. Furthermore, the parties shall not 

Page 234 of 589

DRAFT



6 
 

discriminate against any Student because of a disability, except where 
accommodation would result in undue hardship on the Facility or on Affiliate or that 
would fundamentally alter the nature of the services provided. 

 
6.0  Right to Refuse or Terminate Students. Affiliate may refuse acceptance of  
any Student designated by Liberty for participation in a Clinical/Occupational  
Experience and to terminate participation by any Student in a Clinical/Occupational 
Experience if: (i) the Student is deemed to be a risk to the Facility's patients, 
employees, or to himself or herself; (ii) the Student fails to meet or abide by the 
rules, regulations, policies and procedures of the Facility; (iii) the Student's conduct 
is detrimental to the business or reputation of the Facility or of Affiliate; (iv) the 
Student fails to accept or comply with the direction of Facility staff; or (v) if Student 
fails to adhere to the American Counseling Association Code of Ethics. Liberty 
reserves the right to terminate a Student's participation in a Clinical/Occupational 
Experience when, in its sole discretion, further participation by the Student would 
be inappropriate. 

 
7.0 Independent Contractors/No Agency.  In the performance of duties and 
obligations hereunder, no Faculty, Student, employee, or agent of Liberty shall, for 
any purpose, be deemed to be an agent, servant or employee of Affiliate. No Liberty 
Student shall be deemed to be an employee or agent of Liberty.  No employee or 
agent of Affiliate shall be authorized to act for or on behalf of Liberty. Nothing in 
this Agreement is intended nor shall be construed to create any employer/employee 
relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the parties to exercise control 
over one another or over the manner in which their employees or agents perform the 
services which are the subject of this Agreement. 

 
8.0  Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned or subcontracted, whether 
individually or by operation of law, by either party hereto. 
 
9.0 Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year from the 
Effective Date and thereafter shall renew for successive one (1) year periods upon 
written notification and agreement between the parties. 
 
10.0 Termination. 

 
10.1 This Agreement shall run for the Term unless earlier terminated as 

provided herein. This Agreement may be terminated at any time upon written mutual 
consent of the parties hereto. 

 

Page 235 of 589

DRAFT



7 
 

10.2 This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time without 
cause by giving prior written notice of not less than sixty (60) days. 

 
10.3 This Agreement shall terminate based on a material breach of this 

Agreement by either party, provided that the breaching party fails to cure the breach 
within thirty (30) days of the date of a written notice of the breach. If such breach is not 
cured within thirty (30) days of the notice, the date of termination shall be the thirtieth 
(30th) day following the date of the notice. 

 
10.4 No matter the means of termination, providing notice of early 

termination or notice of non-renewal will not negatively affect any courses in 
progress at the time of the decision nor result in a diminished level of performance 
by either party.  Liberty Students who are enrolled in courses at the termination or 
expiration date will be permitted to complete those courses and Affiliate will 
continue performance of its obligations under this Agreement with regard to those 
Students participating in a Clinical/Occupational Experience and those courses after 
the termination or expiration date of this Agreement.   

 
11.0 Confidentiality. 

 
11.1 Liberty,  its Faculty,  Students,  employees  and agents shall  not at  any  

time during or after the Term of this Agreement, without the prior written consent of 
Affiliate, either directly or indirectly divulge, disclose or communicate in any manner 
whatsoever to any person not employed or affiliated with Affiliate: (a) any 
confidential information, including, but not limited to, patient information and 
information regarding quality assurance, risk management and peer review activities; and 
(b) any information concerning any matters affecting or relating to the business or 
operations or future plans of the Affiliate, including, but not limited to, Facility or 
Affiliate policies, procedures, rules, regulations, and protocols. 
 

11.2 The parties acknowledge that the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA"), and regulations promulgated thereunder, 
including the Privacy Rule (Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health 
Information at 45 C.F.R. part 160 and part 164, subparts A and E), require certain 
protection of Protected Health Information (as defined by HIPAA and the Privacy 
Rule). Liberty acknowledges that Faculty Member and Students may have access to 
Facility's Protected Health Information during its Students' Clinical/Occupational 
Experience. Affiliate agrees to provide instruction regarding its internal HIPAA 
policies and practices to those Students and Faculty Member who will be 

Page 236 of 589

DRAFT



8 
 

participating in the Clinical/Occupational Experience. To the extent protected health 
information (“PHI”) or personally identifiable information (“PII”) is to be 
exchanged or transmitted (electronically or otherwise) between Affiliate and Student 
and between Student and Faculty Member, it is understood and agreed that Students 
and Faculty Member are deemed to be members of Affiliate’s “workforce” as that 
term is defined by HIPAA, and under the supervision and direction of Affiliate’s 
personnel with regard to the use of PHI or PII while participating in the 
Clinical/Occupational Experience and receiving clinical training at Affiliate’s 
facilities pursuant to this Agreement.    
 

11.3 The parties recognize that a breach of this Confidentiality Section of 
this Agreement may result in irreparable harm to Affiliate. In the event of such material 
breach, and without limiting the right of Affiliate to seek any other remedy or relief to 
which it may be entitled under law, Affiliate may seek injunctive relief against Liberty, 
its Faculty Member, Students, employees, and agents. 

 
11.4 This Confidentiality Section shall survive termination of this Agreement. 
 

 12.0    Notice. All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and 
delivered by hand or deposited, postage prepaid, in first-class U.S. mail, registered 
and return receipt requested, addressed as follows or to such other address as a party 
may designate in writing accordance with this Section: 

 
If to Liberty: 
Director of Practicum/Internship 
Dept. of Counselor Education & Family 
Studies 
Liberty University, Inc. 
1971 University Blvd. 
Lynchburg, VA 24515 

If to Affiliate: 
Director of Professional Learning 
Clay County District Schools 
900 Walnut Street 
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
 

 
 
13.0  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including all attached Exhibits,  supersedes  
all earlier agreements  between the parties and contains the final and entire Agreement 
between the parties with respect to the  subject  matter  hereof  and  they  shall  not  
be  bound  by  any  terms, conditions, statements, or representations, oral or written, 
not herein contained, unless contained in a written executed amendment of this 
Agreement signed by all parties hereto. 
 

Page 237 of 589

DRAFT



9 
 

14.0  Severability. Should any provision(s) of this Agreement be held invalid, unlawful 
or unenforceable, the validity of any other provision(s) of this Agreement or the 
Agreement as a whole shall not be affected.  The parties intend that the remaining 
provisions of the Agreement be interpreted liberally to allow performance by both 
parties and fulfill the purposes for which the parties entered into this Agreement.   
 
15.0  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed under and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Florida (excluding her choice of law 
provisions), and it shall be construed in a manner so as to conform with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. Venue for any claim or cause of action 
between the parties to this Agreement brought pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement shall lie in the state courts of Clay County, Florida 
 
16.0  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one 
and the same instrument. 
 
17.0  Headings. Headings used in this Agreement are solely for the convenience of the 
parties and shall be given no effect in the construction or interpretation of this Agreement. 
 
18.0  Waiver. No waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall constitute or be 
deemed a waiver of any other or subsequent breach. All remedies afforded in this 
Agreement shall be taken and construed as cumulative to every other remedy provided 
hereby or at law. 
 
19.0    No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is not intended to and shall   not 
confer upon any other person or business entity, other than the parties hereto, any rights 
or remedies with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
20.0 Indemnification. The parties shall indemnify, defend  and hold harmless  each 
other and each other’s respective officers, employees and agents from and against 
any and all actions, liabilities, claims, damages, suits, liens, judgments, attorneys’ 
fees and costs arising out of or resulting from the negligent and/or unlawful acts or 
omissions of the indemnifying party or the indemnifying party’s officers, employees, 
agents or subcontractors occurring during or in connection with performance under 
or regarding this Agreement. Notwithstanding any language contained in this 
Agreement, nothing contained herein shall be construed or interpreted to increase 
the scope or dollar limit of tort liability of Affiliate, The School Board of Clay 
County, Florida (“CCSB”) or any other entity which is a part of the Clay County 
District Schools organization, beyond the liability limit which is set forth in 768.28 

Page 238 of 589

DRAFT



10 
 

Fla .Stat., or to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity, or to require Affiliate or 
CCSB to indemnify any entity, corporation or person for losses caused by the 
negligence acts of any person, entity or corporation other than the negligence of the 
employees, agents or volunteers of the Affiliate or CCSB The parties’ obligation to 
indemnify each other and each other’s respective officers, employees and agents 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason. 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEROF, and in agreement hereto, Liberty and Affiliate have 

caused this Agreement to be executed by their authorized representatives. 
 
 
 
 
 

LIBERTY UNIVERSITY, INC.  
 
 
Signature:     
 
Printed Name: Justin Wilson  
 
Title: Contract Administrator II  
 
Date:    
  

The School Board of Clay County, 
Florida 
 
Signature: _______________________ 
 
Printed Name: Ashley Gilhousen  
 
Title: Chairman   
 
Date: ___________________________ 
  

 
 

Page 239 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C11 -  7 Mindsets Life Skills and Character Education

Description
7 Mindsets provides life skills training content based on character education standards as set forth by  the state of Florida. Life
skills training, character education, and resiliency training are critical to re-engaging students, supporting adults,
establishing relationships, and creating a foundation for academic learning. Developing resiliency skills will help ensure that
students will have the tools needed to handle difficult situations and prepare them for their future.  The professional development
components will help instructors understand how to build a positive school and classroom culture. 

Gap Analysis
As stated in SB 7030, districts are required to “be focused on a multi-tiered system of supports to deliver evidence-based mental
health care assessment, diagnosis, intervention, treatment and recovery services to students...” Clay County is focused on
encouraging and fostering the success of each child. To meet the character education standards and to prioritize the significance
of Tier I prevention efforts, the 7 Mindsets learning platform will be implemented on a school by school basis to ensure students
are receiving a common language and understanding of character education.

Previous Outcomes
Access to the 7 Mindsets curriculum was expanded in the 22-23 school year to give access to 42 schools in total.  Several schools
implementing for the third consecutive year reported a reduction in referrals, an increase in positive interactions and indicated
that 7 Mindsets was helping to shape the culture of their schools.  The consistency of the content and delivery methods building
from year to year has had a direct impact on the overall results of this program implementation. 

Expected Outcomes
The use of 7 Mindsets will facilitate the development of resiliency skills and character education to help students understand how
to handle difficult situations, engage with others and build relationships. Developing these skills will assist in removing barriers
and open the pathway for academic achievement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 4: Safe and Positive Learning Environment
Strategy 2: Cultivate and sustain resilience, respect and positive behavior through the training and implementation of student
centered, evidenced-based practices.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the renewal of 7 Mindsets.

Contact
Laura Fogarty 904-336-6513 laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$183,00.00

Review Comments

Attachments

240041 7 Mindsets Academy, LLC.pdf

Page 240 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240041-7-mindsets-academy-llc.pdf


Page 241 of 589

DRAFT



Page 242 of 589

DRAFT



Page 243 of 589

DRAFT



Page 244 of 589

DRAFT



Page 245 of 589

DRAFT



Page 246 of 589

DRAFT



Page 247 of 589

DRAFT



Page 248 of 589

DRAFT



Page 249 of 589

DRAFT



Page 250 of 589

DRAFT



Page 251 of 589

DRAFT



Page 252 of 589

DRAFT



Page 253 of 589

DRAFT



Page 254 of 589

DRAFT



Page 255 of 589

DRAFT



Page 256 of 589

DRAFT



Page 257 of 589

DRAFT



Page 258 of 589

DRAFT



Page 259 of 589

DRAFT



Page 260 of 589

DRAFT



Page 261 of 589

DRAFT



Page 262 of 589

DRAFT



Page 263 of 589

DRAFT



Page 264 of 589

DRAFT



Page 265 of 589

DRAFT



Page 266 of 589

DRAFT



Page 267 of 589

DRAFT



Page 268 of 589

DRAFT



Page 269 of 589

DRAFT



Page 270 of 589

DRAFT



Page 271 of 589

DRAFT



Page 272 of 589

DRAFT



Page 273 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C12 - 2023-2024 School Health Services Agreement with Department of Health Clay

Description
This is an annual agreement between the Clay County District Schools and the State of Florida, the Department of Health, and
the Clay County Health Department that ensures the commitment to the health and welfare of students in accordance with FS
381.0056. The State of Florida, Department of Health, and Clay County Health Department (DOH-Clay) will provide health
services oversight and will perform annual school health service program reviews of all Clay County District Schools Health
Services Programs. The DOH-Clay will also provide consultative and support services while ensuring that protocols for health
services are under the medical direction of a licensed Florida physician functioning under the Administrator/Health Officer of the
DOH-Clay. The Clay County District Schools will conduct annual health screenings and submit all data to the DOH-Clay and
follow up with parents/guardians of students that do not pass a health screening. The Clay County District Schools and DOH-
CLay will work collectively with the community to plan and coordinate School Health Wellness Advisory Council (SHWAC) as
required by FS 381.0056.

Gap Analysis
This agreement will ensure that Clay County District Schools Health Services Programs adhere to all procedures and protocols
set for by FS 381.0056.

Previous Outcomes
All Clay County District Schools Health Services Programs have had annual reviews conducted by DOH-Clay and have been
provided consultative services to best meet the needs of all students. 

Expected Outcomes
This agreement will provide clear responsibilities and support for mandated health services. 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve the 2023-2024 School Health Services Agreement as submitted. 

Contact
Laura Fogarty, Director for Climate & Culture (904) 336-9641 laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net, Kristin Riebe, Coordinator of
Nursing Services (904) 336-6884

Financial Impact
N/A

Review Comments

Attachments

240031 Clay County Health Department - School Health Service Agreement.pdf

Page 274 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240031-clay-county-health-department-school-health-service-agreement.pdf


Page 275 of 589

DRAFT



Page 276 of 589

DRAFT



Page 277 of 589

DRAFT



Page 278 of 589

DRAFT



Page 279 of 589

DRAFT



Page 280 of 589

DRAFT



Page 281 of 589

DRAFT



Page 282 of 589

DRAFT



Page 283 of 589

DRAFT



Page 284 of 589

DRAFT



Page 285 of 589

DRAFT



Page 286 of 589

DRAFT



Page 287 of 589

DRAFT



Page 288 of 589

DRAFT



Page 289 of 589

DRAFT



Page 290 of 589

DRAFT



Page 291 of 589

DRAFT



Page 292 of 589

DRAFT



Page 293 of 589

DRAFT



Page 294 of 589

DRAFT



Page 295 of 589

DRAFT



Page 296 of 589

DRAFT



Page 297 of 589

DRAFT



Page 298 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Ratify 240032 Lutheran Services Florida (LSF Health Systems) - Amendment 112

Description
SEDNET is an acronym for The Multi-Agency Network for Students With Emotional and Behavioral Disabilities, which agency
is under the supervision and control of Clay County District Schools.  Lutheran Services Florida, Inc. d/b/a/ LSF Health Systems,
LLC ("LSF") has maintained a contractual relationship with The School Board of Clay County, Florida through SEDNET for
several years.  The contract allows LSF, a non-profit corporation that obtains funds from both federal sources and pursuant to a
contract with the State of Florida, to then contract with regional SEDNET units, of which the Clay County School District is one,
to provide mental and behavioral health resources to students in need throughout the Northeast Florida region which consists of
Duval, Clay, and Nassau counties.  SEDNET acts as an independent contractor to LSF and provides the contracted behavioral
and mental health services through its employees, agents, and subcontractors after which the services are billed to LSF. The limit
of LSF's financial commitment and responsibility, as well as the requirements binding SEDNET are the subject of the attached
contract. The total commitment by LSF, which theoretically should equal the expenditures by SEDNET for the 2020-2021 fiscal
year are $936.659.00. This amount, as well as all terms, are set forth in the attached contract. Under the previous administration
the SEDNET supervisor was given the authority to contract with LSF. The supervisor, by direction, approved the attached
contract on July 8, 2020. It is a three (3) year contract. There are minor amendments to this contract submitted periodically as
required by LSF. Most amendments increase the total amount of the contract by 2% or less. With the change of administration
and the implementation of updated purchasing policies it is necessary to ask the Board to ratify the contract. Without such
ratification, each minor amendment to the contract will have to be brought to the Board, which action will create a lag in the
availability of resources. The Board Attorney, in collaboration with the Supervisor of SEDNET, the Supervisor of Purchasing,
the Assistant Superintendent of Finance, and the Superintendent of Schools all concur that it is imperative for the Board to be
aware of the existence of this contract and that the Board ratify the contract in order for the month to month operations of
SEDNET and its implementation of the contract with LSF to continue without interruption. Pursuant to current School Board
Policy all future Master contracts between LSF and SEDNET would require approval by the School Board. 

Gap Analysis
LSF wishes to amend contract by submitting to SEDNET the attached Amendment 112. The purpose of Amendment is to replace
the 2/1/2023 Standard Contract, Attachments, Exhibits, Incorporated Documents, and Appendices with the updated documents
dated 7/1/2023 & Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Exhibit H. The Amendment shall increase contract amount by $320,862.00 revising
Original/Amended not to exceed amount from $1,114,951.00 to the current not to exceed amount of $1,435,813.00 or the rate
schedule, subject to the availability of funds.

Previous Outcomes
These funds have been used to meet the individualized needs of students requiring supportive mental health and behavioral
services.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected that the School Board will ratify this contract, thereby allowing the Superintendent to execute the minor
amendment to the contract that occur routinely.

Strategic Plan Goal
To allow SEDNET to continue to provide the programs and services of the youth-focused group See You At The Top (SYATT). 
SEDNET will continue to provide individualized mental health services and devise individualized plans for students with
significant mental health needs.

Recommendation
Approve the contract amendments.

Contact
Kathryn Lawrence, SEDNET, kathryn.lawrence@myoneclay.net, (904) 336-4400

Page 299 of 589

DRAFT



Financial Impact
Amendment 112 increases the contract amount by $320,862.00

Review Comments

Attachments

240032 Lutheran Services Florida (LSF Health Systems) - Amendment 112 (1).pdf

Page 300 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/240032-lutheran-services-florida-lsf-health-systems-amendment-112-1.pdf


Page 301 of 589

DRAFT



Page 302 of 589

DRAFT



Page 303 of 589

DRAFT



Page 304 of 589

DRAFT



Page 305 of 589

DRAFT



Page 306 of 589

DRAFT



Page 307 of 589

DRAFT



Page 308 of 589

DRAFT



Page 309 of 589

DRAFT



Page 310 of 589

DRAFT



Page 311 of 589

DRAFT



Page 312 of 589

DRAFT



Page 313 of 589

DRAFT



Page 314 of 589

DRAFT



Page 315 of 589

DRAFT



Page 316 of 589

DRAFT



Page 317 of 589

DRAFT



Page 318 of 589

DRAFT



Page 319 of 589

DRAFT



Page 320 of 589

DRAFT



Page 321 of 589

DRAFT



Page 322 of 589

DRAFT



Page 323 of 589

DRAFT



Page 324 of 589

DRAFT



Page 325 of 589

DRAFT



Page 326 of 589

DRAFT



Page 327 of 589

DRAFT



Page 328 of 589

DRAFT



Page 329 of 589

DRAFT



Page 330 of 589

DRAFT



Page 331 of 589

DRAFT



Page 332 of 589

DRAFT



Page 333 of 589

DRAFT



Page 334 of 589

DRAFT



Page 335 of 589

DRAFT



Page 336 of 589

DRAFT



Page 337 of 589

DRAFT



Page 338 of 589

DRAFT



Page 339 of 589

DRAFT



Page 340 of 589

DRAFT



Page 341 of 589

DRAFT



Page 342 of 589

DRAFT



Page 343 of 589

DRAFT



Page 344 of 589

DRAFT



Page 345 of 589

DRAFT



Page 346 of 589

DRAFT



Page 347 of 589

DRAFT



Page 348 of 589

DRAFT



Page 349 of 589

DRAFT



Page 350 of 589

DRAFT



Page 351 of 589

DRAFT



Page 352 of 589

DRAFT



Page 353 of 589

DRAFT



Page 354 of 589

DRAFT



Page 355 of 589

DRAFT



Page 356 of 589

DRAFT



Page 357 of 589

DRAFT



Page 358 of 589

DRAFT



Page 359 of 589

DRAFT



Page 360 of 589

DRAFT



Page 361 of 589

DRAFT



Page 362 of 589

DRAFT



Page 363 of 589

DRAFT



Page 364 of 589

DRAFT



Page 365 of 589

DRAFT



Page 366 of 589

DRAFT



Page 367 of 589

DRAFT



Page 368 of 589

DRAFT



Page 369 of 589

DRAFT



Page 370 of 589

DRAFT



Page 371 of 589

DRAFT



Page 372 of 589

DRAFT



Page 373 of 589

DRAFT



Page 374 of 589

DRAFT



Page 375 of 589

DRAFT



Page 376 of 589

DRAFT



Page 377 of 589

DRAFT



Page 378 of 589

DRAFT



Page 379 of 589

DRAFT



Page 380 of 589

DRAFT



Page 381 of 589

DRAFT



Page 382 of 589

DRAFT



Page 383 of 589

DRAFT



Page 384 of 589

DRAFT



Page 385 of 589

DRAFT



Page 386 of 589

DRAFT



Page 387 of 589

DRAFT



Page 388 of 589

DRAFT



Page 389 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2023-2024

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2023-2024 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904)336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

09.07.23 - 23-24 Allocation Summary  .pdf

Page 390 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/090723-23-24-allocation-summary.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS    2023-2024 SUMMARY  Board Meeting, September 7, 2023

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2023-2024 ACTIONS

General Funds

POE - 0651 0.9 ESE Assistant, BH Enrollment needs $21,150 $7,407 $28,557

TOTAL: $21,150 $7,407 $28,557

IDEA (420/4100.4)

OHS - 0661 0.9 ESE Assistant, BH Enrollment needs $21,150 $7,407 $28,557

TOTAL: $21,150 $7,407 $28,557

Title 1 (420/4010.4)

Title 1 - 9106 1.0 Title 1, Part A Program Specialist (420/4010.4) Increase of 7 Title 1 schools $67,056 $23,483 $90,539

Title 1 - 9106 10.0 Title 1, Teacher (420/4010.4) Increase of 7 Title 1 schools $484,500 $169,672 $654,172

Title 1 - 9106 13.0 Title 1, Assistant (420/4010.4) Increase of 7 Title 1 schools $274,950 $96,287 $371,237

TOTAL: $826,506 $289,442 $1,115,948

Pending Board Approval 09/07/2023

Page 391 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Superintendent's Annual Financial Report and Annual Cost Report for the FYE 6-30-2023

Description
The Superintendent is required under Section 1001.51(12)(b), Florida Statutes, to prepare for Board approval, all reports that
may be required by law or rules of the State Board.  State Board of Education Rule 6A-1.0071(3), Florida Administrative Code,
requires submission of the Report of Financial Data to the Commissioner of Education no later than September 11 of each year.

Gap Analysis
The Superintendent's Annual Financial Report and Annual Cost Report meets State financial reporting requirements.

Previous Outcomes
 It has been a past (normal) practice to provide the Superintendent's Annual Financial Report and Annual Cost Report, in
accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.0071(3), Florida Administrative Code.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Superintendent's Annual Financial Report is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting
and accountability of the district's finances.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Strategy 2.4:  Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
The Clay County School Board approves the Superintendent's Annual Financial Report and Annual Cost Report for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2023.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Superintendent's Annual Financial Report and Annual Cost Report reflects the annual results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 392 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Budget Amendment Report for June 2023

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006.  

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for June 2023 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 393 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C17 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT AUGUST, 2023

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted. These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair. These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated. Deletions are for property items received in
the month of August, 2023.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal. Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes. All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - September, 2023 as submitted

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property. Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property

Review Comments

Attachments

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT SEPTEMBER, 2023.pdf

Page 394 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-september-2023.pdf


Page 395 of 589

DRAFT



Page 396 of 589

DRAFT



Page 397 of 589

DRAFT



Page 398 of 589

DRAFT



Page 399 of 589

DRAFT



Page 400 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C18 - BID to be Awarded

Description
Award BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a. Refuse Collection - County Wide Bid #23-BA-129: PLACEHOLDER
b. Band Instruments Bid # 23-SCH-95: PLACEHOLDER

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Prior Board approved Bid will expire but it was used successfully during the past terms to provide quality services and products
to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the vendor to provide quality services and products at the terms and conditions listed in
the Bid.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5; Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Award BID as follows:
a. Refuse Collection - County Wide Bid #23-BA-129: 
b. Band Instruments Bid # 23-SCH-95:

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Refuse Collection - County Wide Bid #23-BA-129:  The total estimated expenditure for the three (3) year contract is $_____.
Estimated annual spend of $____ for 2023-24, $____ for 2024-25, and $____ for 2025-26 from General Revenue.

b. Band Instruments Bid # 23-SCH-95:  The total estimated expenditure for the one (1) year and three (3) year contract is
$_____. Estimated annual spend of $____ for 2023-24, $____ for 2024-25, and $____ for 2025-26 from General Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 401 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Florida Safe Schools Assessment Acceptance Letter

Description
Florida DOE/HB 7030-s. 1006.1493, F.S., Florida Safe Schools Assessment Tool must be the Site Security Assessment tool that
is used at each district and school site in conducting security assessments.  The School Safety Specialist reviews the
recommendations of the School Hardening and Harm Mitigation Workgroup from each school.  The School Board must
acknowledge the assessments have been completed and the Superintendent is required to sign verification of completion.

Gap Analysis
Clay County District Schools requires the Board’s confirmation of completion of the Florida Safe Schools Assessments to be in
compliance for SB 7030.

Previous Outcomes
The board has approved these yearly since 2018.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the acceptance letter which will be submitted to the state for compliance of SB 7030.  This will also foster a safe and
secure environment for our District staff by constantly assessing our campuses.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources necessary
to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the acceptance letter and allow the Superintendent to sign the letter which will be submitted to the state for compliance
of SB 7030.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Kenneth Wagner, Chief of Police CCDSPD, (904) 336-0101, kenneth.wagner@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
No Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Safe School Assessment Certification Letter 9.7.23.pdf

Page 402 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/safe-school-assessment-certification-letter-9723.pdf


Page 403 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Purchase Agreement for Two (2) Sets of Ramps and Stairs at Keystone Heights Elementary School

Description
Relocatable building type 92, rooms 712 and 750 located at Keystone Heights Elementary School, identified as CI 0391 and CI
0595 need to be disposed of due to space necessary to complete the new cafeteria and multi-purpose educational facility that is
currently being constructed. T&T House Moving and Heavy Rigging, LLC, is assuming ownership of the two (2) portables
mentioned above.  The portables have ancillary equipment consisting of ramps and stairs.  The ramps and stairs have been
deemed surplus and unusable.  T&T House Moving and Heavy Rigging, LLC has agreed to purchase the ramps and stairs for
$12,500.00.  T&T House Moving and Heavy Rigging, LLC will be responsible for paying for all of the costs associated with
moving the ramps and stairs.

Gap Analysis
No action would result in an unnecessary financial burden on the district.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board has approved the sale of surplus equipment in the past.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the purchase agreement to sell the two (2) sets of ramps and stairs.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the purchase agreement and sale of two (2) sets of ramps and stairs.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904)336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904)336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The District will receive $12,500.00 for the sale of these ramps and stairs.  The funds received shall credit the fund originally
sourced for the original acquisition per SREF 2.1(4)(a)-(h).

Review Comments

Attachments

Purchase Agreement KHE Ramps & Stairs 9.7.23.pdf

Page 404 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/purchase-agreement-khe-ramps-stairs-9723.pdf


Page 405 of 589

DRAFT



Page 406 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Change Order #7 for Orange Park High School Stadium Repair/Replacement

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This change order is for additional stormwater controls on restroom facilities to
include gutter and downspout system and a changed site condition that resulted in the civil engineering and installation of a
retaining wall to support ADA ramp and stairs and additional electrical as requested by the school.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #7.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will increase the contract amount by $28,531.16.   Architect fees, contracted at 7.91%, will increase by
$2,256.81 as a result of this change order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

OPH Stadium Repair.Replacement CO 7.pdf

Page 407 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-stadium-repairreplacement-co-7.pdf


Page 408 of 589

DRAFT



Page 409 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Substantial Completion of Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations

Description
Establish a Substantial Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities
(SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Engineer, has reached
Substantial Completion on July 25, 2023 in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

OPJ Restroom Renovations Substantial Completion.pdf

Page 410 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/opj-restroom-renovations-substantial-completion.pdf


Page 411 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Change Order #3 for Middleburg High School Cafeteria Expansion

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This change order is the result of changed site conditions that resulted in the need
for tapered insulation on a pitched roof, additional flooring required in plumbing pour back areas, and additional cleaning
services requested in addition to the end of project cleaning service.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources necessary
to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #3.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will increase the contract amount by $22,896.51.   Architect fees, contracted at 8.5%, will increase by
$1,946.20 as a result of this change order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

MHS Cafeteria Expansion CO 3.pdf

Page 412 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mhs-cafeteria-expansion-co-3.pdf


Page 413 of 589

DRAFT



Page 414 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Substantial and Final Completion of Clay High School Restroom Renovations

Description
Establish a Substantial and Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Engineer, has
reached Substantial Completion on August 7 and Final Completion on August 7, 2023 in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

CHS Restroom Renovations Substantial and Final Completion.pdf

Page 415 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/chs-restroom-renovations-substantial-and-final-completion.pdf


Page 416 of 589

DRAFT



Page 417 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Lake Asbury Junior High School HVAC Repair/Replacement Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the 2023/2024 Educational Facilities Plan (EFP). The District will be utilizing the DCPS RFP N 08/19-
TW-HVAC Maintenance Bid.  Per School Board policy, contracts over $500,000.00 must be approved by the School Board of
Clay County; therefore, this contract is being presented for approval.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal
Construction of Lake Asbury Junior High School HVAC Repair/Replacement.

Recommendation
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Award the construction contract to Trane U.S. using the DCPS RFP N 08/19-TW-HVAC Maintenance Bid in the amount of
$754,468.70.

Review Comments

Attachments

LAJ HVAC Repair.Replacement Contract 9.7.23.pdf

Page 418 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/laj-hvac-repairreplacement-contract-9723.pdf


Page 419 of 589

DRAFT



Page 420 of 589

DRAFT



Page 421 of 589

DRAFT



Page 422 of 589

DRAFT



Page 423 of 589

DRAFT



Page 424 of 589

DRAFT



Page 425 of 589

DRAFT



Page 426 of 589

DRAFT



Page 427 of 589

DRAFT



Page 428 of 589

DRAFT



Page 429 of 589

DRAFT



Page 430 of 589

DRAFT



Page 431 of 589

DRAFT



Page 432 of 589

DRAFT



Page 433 of 589

DRAFT



Page 434 of 589

DRAFT



Page 435 of 589

DRAFT



Page 436 of 589

DRAFT



Page 437 of 589

DRAFT



Page 438 of 589

DRAFT



Page 439 of 589

DRAFT



Page 440 of 589

DRAFT



Page 441 of 589

DRAFT



Page 442 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Change Order #1 for Plantation Oaks Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer or staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order is for a credit for changing to a standard color of paint
(Aluminum to Bone White).

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.
 

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This Change Order will decrease the contract amount by $1,875.00. Architect fees will not be affected by this Change Order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 for Plantation Oaks Elementary School Roof Repair Replacement.pdf

Page 443 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-for-plantation-oaks-elementary-school-roof-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 444 of 589

DRAFT



Page 445 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Orange Park Junior High School Roof Repair/Replacement Contract Award

Description
The Orange Park Junior High School roof repair/replacement project was listed and approved by the School Board as part of the
2023/24 Educational Facilities Plan (EFP). The district will be utilizing Association of Educational Purchasing Agencies Coop
(AEPA #IFB-021-D / #21-239). Per School Board policy, contracts over $500,000.00 must be approved by the School Board of
Clay County; therefore, this contract is being presented for approval.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction of Orange Park Junior High School Roof Repair/Replacement.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to Weatherproofing Technologies, Inc. using AEPA #IFB-021-D / #21-239 Bid in the amount of
$1,517,110.07.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Backup Information - Orange Park Junior High School Roof Repair Replacement.pdf

Page 446 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-orange-park-junior-high-school-roof-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 447 of 589

DRAFT



Page 448 of 589

DRAFT



Page 449 of 589

DRAFT



Page 450 of 589

DRAFT



Page 451 of 589

DRAFT



Page 452 of 589

DRAFT



Page 453 of 589

DRAFT



Page 454 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C28 - Substantial Completion of Wilkinson Elementary School Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations

Description
Establish a Substantial Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities
(SREF) and Florida Statutes. The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Project Contractor, has
reached Substantial Completion on August 7, 2023, in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Certificate of Substantial Completion - WES Kitchen Cafeteria Renovations.pdf

Page 455 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-completion-wes-kitchen-cafeteria-renovations.pdf


Page 456 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C29 - Substantial Completion of Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 - Shingles &
Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations

Description
Establish a Substantial Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities
(SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Project Contractor, has
reached Substantial Completion on July 27, 2023, in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Substantial Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Certificate of Substantial Completion - RVE Roof Repair Replacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 - Shingles & Kitchen Cafeteria
Renovations.pdf

Page 457 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-completion-rve-roof-repair-replacement-buildings-1-2-3-shingles-kitchen-cafeteria-renovations.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-substantial-completion-rve-roof-repair-replacement-buildings-1-2-3-shingles-kitchen-cafeteria-renovations.pdf


Page 458 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C30 - Final Completion of Plantation Oaks Elementary School Reroof

Description
Establish a Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF)
and Florida Statutes. The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect/Engineer, has reached Final
Completion on April 27, 2023 in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Certificate of Final Completion - POE Reroof.pdf

Page 459 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-final-completion-poe-reroof.pdf


Page 460 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C31 - Change Order #1 for Green Cove Junior High School Window/HVAC Replacement Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer or staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order is for structural and HVAC additions to the project.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This Change Order will increase the contract amount by $336,551.66. Architect fees, contracted at 9.03%, will be increased
$30,390.61 as a result of this Change Order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order for #1 GCJ Window HVAC Replacement Buildings 1, 2, 3, & 4.pdf

Page 461 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-for-1-gcj-window-hvac-replacement-buildings-1-2-3-4.pdf


Page 462 of 589

DRAFT



Page 463 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C32 - Change Order #1 for Bannerman Learning Center Parking Lot Renovations/Security Lighting Replacement

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer or staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order is for fencing, unsuitable soils, added site work and light poles.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This Change Order will increase the contract amount by $126,802.41. Engineering fees, contracted at 8% will increase by
$10,144.19 as a result of this Change Order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 for BLC Parking Lot Renovations Security Lighting Replacement.pdf

Page 464 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-for-blc-parking-lot-renovations-security-lighting-replacement.pdf


Page 465 of 589

DRAFT



Page 466 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C33 - Change Order #3 for Keystone Heights Elementary School New Cafeteria/Classrooms

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer or staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order is for electrical, mechanical, and structural scope changes to the
project.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #3.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This Change Order will increase the contract amount by $545,968.92. Architect fees contracted at 7.31% will increase by
$39,910.33 as a result of this Change Order. These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #3 KHE New Cafeteria Classrooms.pdf

Page 467 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-3-khe-new-cafeteria-classrooms.pdf


Page 468 of 589

DRAFT



Page 469 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C34 - Change Order #4 (Direct Purchasing) for Spring Park Elementary School

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save the sales tax. This change
order corrects purchase orders previously approved but requiring adjustment as a result of shipping fee changes, quantity of
material changes, cancellation by the contractor, etc.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #4.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This addition to the construction contract in the amount of $179,310.93 will not impact the budget. Architect fees will not
increase as a result of this change order. The Owner Direct Purchase Order saved the District $622,723.89 on this project. This
addition to the construction contract will not impact the budget. This action reconciles direct purchasing and returns unused
funds to the Contractor.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #4 (Direct Purchasing) for Spring Park Elementary School.pdf

Page 470 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-4-direct-purchasing-for-spring-park-elementary-school.pdf


Page 471 of 589

DRAFT



Page 472 of 589

DRAFT



Page 473 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C35 - Prequalification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district. The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF). The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month. As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status. Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 9.7.23.pdf

Page 474 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-9723_1.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Michael Kemp, Clayton Anderson, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-
qualification certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

A3 Communications Electrical Contractor $12,700,000.00 September 30, 2024 

All Con-Baker, JV General Contractor and 
Professional Engineer 

$10,000,000.00 September 30, 2024 

Allstate Construction, LLC General Contractor $100,000,000.00 September 30, 2024 

Danis Construction, LLC General Contractor  $100,000,000.00 September 30, 2024 

The Haskell Company General Contractor $250,000,000.00 September 30, 2024 

 

Page 475 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C36 - Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Orange Park High School

Description
The Safety & Security: Emergency Communications upgrades for Orange Park High School is a project listed in the 2023/24
Educational Facilities Plan and was approved by the SBCC August 1, 2023. The security project will provide technology
infrastructure required to upgrade emergency systems to include: Classroom Communications, Intercom Upgrades, Panic Alerts,
Digital Lockdown Signage, as well as Digital Mapping and Security Camera/Access Control Integration Capability. The District
will be utilizing the PAEC Florida Buy Contract #23-01. Per School Board policy, contracts over $500,000.00 must be approved
by the School Board of Clay County; therefore, this contract is being presented for approval.

Gap Analysis
School communications systems are outdated and critical upgrades are needed to enhance Safety & Security Emergency
Communications.

Previous Outcomes
The Board has previously awarded contracts for projects identified and listed and previously approved as part of the Educational
Facilities Work Plan.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, efforts to upgrade our infrastructure required to improve safety and security emergency
communications systems at our schools will commence in a phased-in approach districtwide.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the contract to Audio Enhancement, Inc using the PAEC Florida Buy Contract #23-01 in the amount of $1,091,247.21.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - OPH.pdf

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - OPH Cont..pdf

Page 476 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-for-safety-security-emergency-communications-contract-award-oph.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-for-safety-security-emergency-communications-contract-award-oph-cont.pdf


Page 477 of 589

DRAFT



Page 478 of 589

DRAFT



Page 479 of 589

DRAFT



Page 480 of 589

DRAFT



Page 481 of 589

DRAFT



Page 482 of 589

DRAFT



Page 483 of 589

DRAFT



Page 484 of 589

DRAFT



Page 485 of 589

DRAFT



Page 486 of 589

DRAFT



Page 487 of 589

DRAFT



Page 488 of 589

DRAFT



Page 489 of 589

DRAFT



Page 490 of 589

DRAFT



Page 491 of 589

DRAFT



Page 492 of 589

DRAFT



Page 493 of 589

DRAFT



Page 494 of 589

DRAFT



Page 495 of 589

DRAFT



Page 496 of 589

DRAFT



Page 497 of 589

DRAFT



Page 498 of 589

DRAFT



Page 499 of 589

DRAFT



Page 500 of 589

DRAFT



Page 501 of 589

DRAFT



Page 502 of 589

DRAFT



Page 503 of 589

DRAFT



Page 504 of 589

DRAFT



Page 505 of 589

DRAFT



Page 506 of 589

DRAFT



Page 507 of 589

DRAFT



Page 508 of 589

DRAFT



Page 509 of 589

DRAFT



Page 510 of 589

DRAFT



Page 511 of 589

DRAFT



Page 512 of 589

DRAFT



Page 513 of 589

DRAFT



Page 514 of 589

DRAFT



Page 515 of 589

DRAFT



Page 516 of 589

DRAFT



Page 517 of 589

DRAFT



Page 518 of 589

DRAFT



Page 519 of 589

DRAFT



Page 520 of 589

DRAFT



Page 521 of 589

DRAFT



Page 522 of 589

DRAFT



Page 523 of 589

DRAFT



Page 524 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C37 - Safety & Security: Emergency Communications - Contract Award for Oakleaf High School

Description
The Safety & Security: Emergency Communications upgrades for Oakleaf High School is a project listed in the 2023/24
Educational Facilities Plan and was approved by the SBCC August 1, 2023. The security project will provide technology
infrastructure required to upgrade emergency systems to include: Classroom Communications, Intercom Upgrades, Panic Alerts,
Digital Lockdown Signage, as well as Digital Mapping and Security Camera/Access Control Integration Capability. The District
will be utilizing the PAEC Florida Buy Contract #23-01. Per School Board policy, contracts over $500,000.00 must be approved
by the School Board of Clay County; therefore, this contract is being presented for approval.

Gap Analysis
School communications systems are outdated and critical upgrades are needed to enhance Safety & Security Emergency
Communications.

Previous Outcomes
The Board has previously awarded contracts for projects identified and listed and previously approved as part of the Educational
Facilities Work Plan.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, efforts to upgrade our infrastructure required to improve safety and security emergency
communications systems at our schools will commence in a phased-in approach districtwide.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Award the contract to Audio Enhancement, Inc using the PAEC Florida Buy Contract #23-01 in the amount of $880,985.94.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - OHS.pdf

Backup Information for Safety & Security Emergency Communications Contract Award - OHS Cont..pdf

Page 525 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-for-safety-security-emergency-communications-contract-award-ohs.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/backup-information-for-safety-security-emergency-communications-contract-award-ohs-cont.pdf


Page 526 of 589

DRAFT



Page 527 of 589

DRAFT



Page 528 of 589

DRAFT



Page 529 of 589

DRAFT



Page 530 of 589

DRAFT



Page 531 of 589

DRAFT



Page 532 of 589

DRAFT



Page 533 of 589

DRAFT



Page 534 of 589

DRAFT



Page 535 of 589

DRAFT



Page 536 of 589

DRAFT



Page 537 of 589

DRAFT



Page 538 of 589

DRAFT



Page 539 of 589

DRAFT



Page 540 of 589

DRAFT



Page 541 of 589

DRAFT



Page 542 of 589

DRAFT



Page 543 of 589

DRAFT



Page 544 of 589

DRAFT



Page 545 of 589

DRAFT



Page 546 of 589

DRAFT



Page 547 of 589

DRAFT



Page 548 of 589

DRAFT



Page 549 of 589

DRAFT



Page 550 of 589

DRAFT



Page 551 of 589

DRAFT



Page 552 of 589

DRAFT



Page 553 of 589

DRAFT



Page 554 of 589

DRAFT



Page 555 of 589

DRAFT



Page 556 of 589

DRAFT



Page 557 of 589

DRAFT



Page 558 of 589

DRAFT



Page 559 of 589

DRAFT



Page 560 of 589

DRAFT



Page 561 of 589

DRAFT



Page 562 of 589

DRAFT



Page 563 of 589

DRAFT



Page 564 of 589

DRAFT



Page 565 of 589

DRAFT



Page 566 of 589

DRAFT



Page 567 of 589

DRAFT



Page 568 of 589

DRAFT



Page 569 of 589

DRAFT



Page 570 of 589

DRAFT



Page 571 of 589

DRAFT



Page 572 of 589

DRAFT



Page 573 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C38 - Change Order #3 (Direct Purchasing) for Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 -
Shingles & Kitchen Cafeteria Renovations

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. This change order
corrects purchase orders previously approved but requiring adjustment as a result of shipping fee changes, quantity of material
changes, cancellation by the contractor, etc.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #3.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This addition to the construction contract in the amount of $418.70 will not impact the budget. Architect fees will not increase as
a result of this change order. The Owner Direct Purchase Order saved the District $3,260.94 on this project. This action
reconciles direct purchasing and returns unused funds to the Contractor.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #3 (Direct Purchasing) RVE Roof RepairReplacement Buildings 1, 2, & 3 - Shingles & Kitchen Cafeteria
Renovations.pdf

Page 574 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-3-direct-purchasing-rve-roof-repairreplacement-buildings-1-2-3-shingles-kitchen-cafeteria-renovations.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-3-direct-purchasing-rve-roof-repairreplacement-buildings-1-2-3-shingles-kitchen-cafeteria-renovations.pdf


Page 575 of 589

DRAFT



Page 576 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C39 - Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement between the Clay County School Board and Clay County, FL related to the
County Road 315 Right of Way Improvements and Signalization

Description
The newly constructed Spring Park Elementary School required traffic signaling contiguous to the newly constructed Spring Park
Elementary school prior to the school opening in August 2023. At the time the Interlocal Agreement 2022/2023-173 was
approved by the School Board in April  2023, the final cost of the signaling was unknown. Paragraph 4(c)(ii)  of the ILA
2022/2023-173 stipulates that an amendment would be necessary when the final costs are determined based on the county’s
procurement of such labor, services, and materials.

Gap Analysis
Failure to approve the Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement will result in the School Board’s failure to adhere to Paragraph 4,
“School Board’s Responsibilities,” of the Interlocal Agreement 2022/2023-173 signed on April 6, 2023.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has entered into several Interlocal Agreements with local governmental agencies in the past.

Expected Outcomes
The Board will approve the Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement between the Clay County School Board and Clay County,
FL related to the County Road 315 Right of Way improvements and the final costs of traffic signalization.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement between the Clay County School Board and Clay County, FL related to the
County Road 315 Right of Way improvements and the final costs of traffic signalization.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Lance Addison, Planning & Intergovernmental Relations, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director, Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Clay County School Board costs are $490,348.50

Review Comments

Attachments

Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with BCC for CR 315 Improvements 9.7.23.pdf

Page 577 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/amendment-to-interlocal-agreement-with-bcc-for-cr-315-improvements-9723.pdf


Page 578 of 589

DRAFT



Page 579 of 589

DRAFT



Page 580 of 589

DRAFT



Page 581 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
C40 - County-Wide Architect Contract Award – Acquisition Notice/Re-Assignment

Description
The Clay County School Board, meeting in regular session on Thursday, April 6, 2023 appointed Ebert Norman Brady
Architects as one of the seven architect firms for County-Wide Architectural Services up to $4 million. We were notified after
the appointment that LS3P Associates, LTD. Corporation, legally acquired Ebert Norman Brady Architects on April 3, 2023.
This item documents the acquisition and re-assignment of the current contract award to LS3P Associates, LTD. Corporation.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Awarding a continuing contract for professional architecture services authorizes a firm or individual to proceed with School
Board projects not exceeding a specified monetary value specified in Board Policy for a period of one year.  The appointment
may be extended for an additional period of not more than one year if agreeable to the School Board and the architecture firm. 
The appointed architecture firm shall be available to design, manage, and inspect any School Board projects under the authorized
limit without having to bid against other firms.

Expected Outcomes
This contract allows for more efficient project schedules,  which subsequently allow for a faster project completion. The
appointed architecture firm shall be available to design, manage, and inspect any projects under the authorized limit.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the re-assignment of the contract award from Ebert Norman Brady Architects to LS3P Associates, LTD. Corporation
for County-Wide Architectural Services.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
All funding necessary for architectural fees resulting from the use of this contract are budgeted within a qualifying project in the
Educational Facilities Work Plan.  Fees are determined by project scope and negotiated at the time of project design.

Review Comments

Attachments

County Wide Architectural Services Contract Amendment - LS3P Associates LTD.pdf

Page 582 of 589

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/county-wide-architectural-services-contract-amendment-ls3p-associates-ltd.pdf


' ' 

FOLLOW ALL PROCEDURES ON BACK OF THIS FORM 

• CONTRACT REVIEW

Date Submitted: �""I.3 B/3/-uu

Contract#_'_•__._/ ___ , ___ _ 
Number Assigned by Purchasing Dept. 

BOARD MEETING DATE: 

WHEN BOARD APPROVAL IS REQUIRED DO 
NOT PIACE ITEM ON AGENDA UNTIL 

REVIEW IS COMPLETED 
D Must Have Board Aporoval over $100,000.00 

Name of Contract Initiator: Dr. Michael Kemp Telephone #: 66824 
School/Dept Submitting Contract: Operations 
Vendor Name: LS3P Associates LTD. 
Contract Title: County-Wide Architectural Services Contract 
Contract Type: New o Renewal o Amendment iz1 Extension o 

Cost Center # 9023 

Previous Year Contract# 
Contract Term: 1 year Renewal Option(s): 2 additional 1 year terms 
Contract Cost: 
□ BUDGETED FUNDS- SEND CONTRACT PACl<AGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

Funding Source: Budget Line# ___________________ _ 
Funding Source: Budget Line# ___________________ _ 

□ NO COST MASTER (COUNTY WIDE) CONTRACT - SEND CONTRACT PACl(AGE DIRECTLY TO PURCHASING DEPT

□ INTERNAL ACCOUNT - IF FUNDED FROM SCHOOL IA FUNDS - SEND CONTRACT PACKAGE DIRECTL V TO SBAO

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR CONTRACT REVIEW PACKAGE (when applicable):
__ Completed Contract Review Form 
__ SBAO Template Contract or other Contract (NOT SIGNED by District/ School) 
__ SIGNED Addendum A (If not an SBAO Template Contract}* 

•This Statement MUST BE Included In the body of the Contract:
"The terms and conditions of Addendum A are hereby Incorporated Into this Agreement and the same shall 
govern and preva/1 over any conflicting terms and/or conditions herein stated," 

__ Certificate of Insurance (COi} for General Llablllty & Workers' Compensation that meet these requirements: 

RECEIVED 

AUG - 2 2023 

PURCHASING 

COi must list the School Board of Clay County, Florida as an Additional Insured and Certificate Holder. Insurer must be rated as A- or better. 
General Llabll/ty = $1,000,000 Each Occurrence & $2,000,000 General Aggregate.
Auto Llab///ty"' $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit {$5,000,000 for Charter Buses). 
Workers' compensation= $100,000 Minimum 

[If exempt from Workers' Compensation Insurance, vendor/contractor must sign a Release and Hold Harmless Form. If not exempt, vendor/contractor 
must provide Workers' Compensation coverage]. 

__ State of Florida Workers Comp Exemption (https://apps.flcffs.cgm/bocexemct/l (If Applicable) rc5) �©IE ll'o// re� 
__ COVID-19Walver(lfAppllcable) 

Ul.1[ 'I/7/�J Release and Hold Harmless (If Appllcable} r��, -·"'--------1 
*"'AREA BELOW FOR DISTRICT PERSONNEL ONLY** 

CONTRACT REVl'EWED BV: 

Purchasing Department '3::fi5-

Review Date BJ?, j 2.. �

School Board Atta
r;�

Review Date 
g l ti lZ--?

Other Dept. as Necessary 

Review Date 

PENDING STATUS: □YES □NO 

FINAL STATUS 

COMMENTS BELOW BV REVIEWING DEPARTMENT 

Need to amend the ortglnal Counly-Wlde Arehllectural Services with Ebert Norman Brady Architects. They have merged with another firm, LS3P 
Associates, LTD. 

IF YES, HIGHLIGHTED COMMENTS ABOVE MUST BE CORRECTED BY INITIATOR 

\. J 

Contract Review Process for ALL Contracts, September 2020, SBAO
l
(web) 

Page 583 of 589

DRAFT



Page 584 of 589

DRAFT



Page 585 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 586 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 587 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Human Resources Special Action C

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 588 of 589

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

September 7, 2023 - Regular Board Meeting

Title
D4 - Human Resources Special Action D

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 589 of 589

DRAFT


